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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ No ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of �accelerated filer and large accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨ Non-accelerated filer þ

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405
of the Securities Act. Yes ¨ No þ
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
Section 15(d) of the Act Yes ¨ No þ

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date.

Title of Each Class

Common Stock, $.10 par value

Number of Shares Outstanding At

August 1, 2007

7,134,884

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

2



PART 1

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

   June 30, 2007  December 31, 2006
Assets

Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value $ 188,906 $ 16,636 
Equity securities available for sale, at fair value 9,731 4,403 
Other invested assets 1,745 - 

Total investments 200,382 21,039 

Cash and cash equivalents 22,175 4,242 
Cash � restricted 636 1,880 
Accrued investment income 1,156 197 
Other amounts receivable under reinsurance contracts 2,680 - 
Premium and maintenance fees receivables 16,270 - 
Reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid loss adjustment expenses 25,854 - 
Deferred policy acquisition costs 2,247 - 
Management fees receivable - 2,736 
Subrogation recoverables 354 - 
Deferred tax assets 7,988 1,321 
Goodwill - 1,247 
Property and equipment, net 894 556 
Other assets 2,741 3,058 

Total assets $ 283,377 $ 36,276 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS, continued

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

   June 30, 2007   December 31, 2006
Liabilities

Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expense $ 109,816 $ - 
Unearned premiums and maintenance fees 34,562 - 
Reinsurance premiums payable 311 - 
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 7,371 - 
Trade accounts payable 6,891 2,228 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,360 4,323 
Federal income tax payable 4,343 136 
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 8,271 - 

Total liabilities 179,925 6,687 

Minority interest 22 21 

Shareholders� equity

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000,000

Shares authorized, none issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.10 par value, shares authorized 20,000,000;

6,819,384 and 2,817,746 issued and outstanding at

06/30/07 and 12/31/06, respectively 682 282 
Additional paid-in capital 73,769 7,944 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (2,692) 231 
Retained earnings 31,671 21,111 

Total shareholders� equity 103,430 29,568 

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 283,377 $ 36,276 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

  Three Months Ended
 June 30,

  Six Months Ended
 June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
REVENUES
Gross premiums and maintenance fees
written

$ 15,045 $ - $ 15,045 $ - 

Premiums ceded 3,418 - 3,418 - 
Change in unearned premiums and
maintenance fees

1,983 - 1,983 - 

Net premiums and maintenance fees earned 20,446 - 20,446 - 

Investment income, net of investment
expense

2,506 223 2,839 419 

Realized capital gain (loss), net (49) 12 (464) 20 
Management service 36 3,175 3,695 6,830 
Financial services 6,972 4,763 12,189 8,335 
Other revenue 16 41 34 53 

Total revenues 29,927 8,214 38,739 15,657 

EXPENSES
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 3,162 - 3,162 - 
Other underwriting expenses 2,434 - 2,434 - 
Change in deferred policy acquisition costs 157 - 157 - 
Management service expenses - 2,647 3,823 5,401 
Financial services expenses 6,330 4,160 10,692 7,445 
General and administrative expenses 1,421 479 2,192 998 
Loss from impairment of goodwill 1,247 - 1,247 - 

Total expenses 14,751 7,286 23,707 13,844 

Income from operations 15,176 928 15,032 1,813 
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Income tax expense 5,368 329 5,319 651 
Minority interests 1 1 1 2 

Net income before extraordinary gain $ 9,807 $ 598 $ 9,712 $ 1,160 

Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 2,264 - 2,264 - 

Net income $ 12,071 $ 598 $ 11,976 $ 1,160 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

  Three Months Ended
 June 30,

  Six Months Ended
 June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Net income per common share
Basic:
Net income before extraordinary gain $ 1.98 $ 0.22 $ 2.50 $ 0.42 
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.46 - 0.58 - 
Net Income $ 2.44 $ 0.22 $ 3.08 $ 0.42 

Diluted:
Net income before extraordinary gain $ 1.93 $ 0.21 $ 2.41 $ 0.40 
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 0.44 - 0.56 - 
Net Income $ 2.37 $ 0.21 $ 2.97 $ 0.40 

Basic weighted average shares
outstanding

4,955 2,762 3,894 2,762 

Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding

5,091 2,917 4,026 2,936 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Comprehensive
Income
(loss)

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(loss)

Treasury
Stock

Total
Shareholders�

Equity
Balance December
31, 2006

$ 282 $ 7,944 $ 21,111 $ -- $ 231 $ -- $ 29,568 

Comprehensive
income:
Net income (loss) -- -- (95) (95) -- -- (95)
Other
comprehensive
income:
Unrealized loss on
securities, net of
taxes of ($25) -- -- -- (48) (48) -- (48)

Comprehensive
income:

$ -- $ -- $ -- $ (143) $  -- $  -- $  -- 

Stock options
exercised

1 79  --  --  --  -- 80 

Stock options
expensed

 -- 915  --  --  --  -- 915 

Tax benefit from
exercise of

Stock options  -- 71  --  --  --  -- 71 
Treasury stock
purchases

 --  --  --  --  -- (37) (37)

Canceled treasury
stock

 -- (37)  --  --  -- 37  - 

Stock awarded 3 460 --  -- -- -- 463 

Balance March 31,
2007

$ 286 $ 9,432 $ 21,016 $ -- $ 183 $ -- $ 30,917 
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Comprehensive
income:
Net income (loss)  --  -- 12,071 12,071  --  -- 12,071 
Other
comprehensive
income:
Unrealized loss on
securities, net of
taxes of ($1,481)  --  --  -- (2,875) (2,875)  -- (2,875)

Comprehensive
income:

$  -- $  -- $  -- $ 9,196 $  -- $  -- $  -- 

Stock options
exercised

1 52  --  --  --  -- 53 

Stock options
expensed

 -- 103  --  --  --  -- 103 

Tax benefit from
exercise of stock
options  -- 11  --  --  --  -- 11 
Treasury stock
purchases

 --  --  --  --  -- (539) (539)

Canceled treasury
stock

(3) (536)  --  --  -- 539  -- 

Stock issued-Public
Offering, net of
offering costs of
$783,000 200 30,037  --  --  --  -- 30,237 
Stock
issued-Merger

198 34,670  --  --  --  -- 34,868 

Dividend paid -- -- (1,416) -- -- -- (1,416)

Balance June 30,
2007

$ 682 $ 73,769 $ 31,671 $ -- $ (2,692) $ -- $ 103,430 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:   Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006

Net Income $ 11,976 $ 1,160 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and other 228 364 
Common stock awarded 1,000 102 
Extraordinary gain (2,264) - 
Impairment of assets 1,892 - 
Deferred income tax (2,220) 261 
Other non-cash items (82) 43 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premium receivables, net (1,623) - 
Other amounts receivable under reinsurance contracts (1,307) - 
Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid and paid loss expenses 3,831 - 
Funds held under reinsurance treaties (3,741) - 
Losses and loss adjustment expenses (6,411) - 
Unearned premiums and maintenance fees (1,954) - 
Other receivables and assets 5,634 1,712 
Federal income tax payable 2,025 (690)
Deferred compensation 563 22 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,023 (1,353)
Net cash provided by operating activities 11,570 1,621 
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures (469) (103)
Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale equity 20,903 4,760 
Purchase of available-for-sale equity securities (51,159) (4,988)
Funds loaned to others (275) (248)
Cash received from API acquisition 9,910 - 
Collection of notes receivable 26 10 
Net cash used in investing activities (21,064) (569)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Secondary stock offering 30,237 - 
Exercise of stock options 118 504 
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Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 82 355 
Treasury stock purchases (576) (1,991)
Dividends paid (1,416) (820)
Preferred stock redemption (1,018) - 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 27,427 (1,952)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ 17,933 $ (900)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4,242 6,680 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 22,175 $ 5,780 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2007

(Unaudited)

1.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�GAAP�) and pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally
included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such
rules and regulations. The consolidated unaudited financial statements as of and for the three- and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 reflect all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair
presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. Such adjustments
consist of only items of a normal recurring nature. These consolidated financial statements have not been audited by
our independent registered public accounting firm. The operating results for the interim periods are not necessarily
indicative of results for the full fiscal year.

The notes to consolidated financial statements appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 filed with the SEC should be read in conjunction with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. There
have been significant changes in the type of information reported and the presentation format in this Quarterly Report
as a result of the acquisition of American Physicians Insurance Company (�API�) effective April 1, 2007 and such
changes are disclosed in the notes hereto.

2.

Management�s Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The most significant estimates that are susceptible to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of
the liability for reserves for losses and loss adjustment expense, reinsurance, income taxes, and the fair value of
investments.  Although considerable judgment is inherent in these estimates, management believes that the current
estimates are reasonable in all material respects. The estimates are reviewed regularly and adjusted, as necessary.
Adjustments related to changes in estimates are reflected in the Company�s results of operations, or other
comprehensive income, in the period in which those estimates are changed.

3.

Acquisition
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On April 1, 2007, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of API. We considered several factors in
determining to acquire API, including the favorable effects tort reform had on the Texas market, our long-term
experience managing API�s operations, our credibility in the marketplace, the common goals we shared with API�s
board of directors, the ability to increase API�s capital to support future growth after the acquisition and the increased
financial strength of the combined entity. The results of operations for API are included in our consolidated results of
operations beginning April 1, 2007. The business combination is being accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting and, accordingly, the purchase price has been allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
fair values at the date of acquisition. The allocation has been reviewed but not audited by our outside auditors and will
not be

8
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final until the audit of the 2007 financial results. The total purchase price was $45,167,000 and consisted of 1,982,499
shares of the Company�s common stock, valued at a per share price of $17.635, or $34,961,000 in the aggregate,
$35,000 in cash paid in lieu of fractional shares of common stock, 10,197.95 shares of preferred stock valued at
$9,179,000, plus costs to complete the acquisition of $992,000. We are required to redeem at least $1 million of the
preferred stock each calendar year beginning in 2007, until December 31, 2016, at which time all of the preferred
stock must have been redeemed. The preferred stock has a cumulative dividend equal to 3% of the outstanding
redemption value per year.  On June 1, 2007 we made the first required payment, redeeming 10% of the preferred
shares outstanding and paying the dividend. The following table discloses the amount assigned to each major asset
and liability of API at the acquisition date, April 1, 2007.

The purchase price was allocated to the balance sheet of API as of April 1, 2007, as follows:

(in thousands)
ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale $ 145,354 
Equity securities available for sale 6,851 
Other invested assets 1,848 
Total investments 154,053 
Cash and cash equivalents 9,910 
Accrued investment income 793 
Premium and maintenance fees receivable 14,647 
Other amounts receivable under reinsurance recoverables 1,373 
Reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid loss adjustment expenses 29,685 
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 311 
Deferred policy acquisition costs 2,404 
Deferred tax assets 4,630 
Subrogation recoverables 505 
Other assets 358 
Total assets $ 218,669 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

Liabilities
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 116,227 
Unearned premiums and maintenance fees 36,516 
Reinsurance premiums payable 253 
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 11,112 

Federal income tax payable 2,623 
Other liabilities 4,507 
Total liabilities $ 171,238 
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Purchase Price 45,167 
Excess of net assets received over cost to acquire (1) 2,264 

Total $ 218,669 
(1)

The fair value of net assets acquired exceeded the cost of acquisition. After review it was determined that no
intangibles were acquired and that no assets should be reduced below their carrying value, which approximates fair
value. Consequently, an extraordinary gain of $2,264,000 was recognized in the period of the acquisition in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, Accounting for Business Combinations.

9
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The tables below reflect the unaudited pro forma balance sheet as of December 31, 2006, and the results of operations
for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 of the Company and API as if the acquisition had
taken place on January 1 of 2007 and 2006, respectively, including estimated purchase accounting adjustments.

AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

    December 31, 2006
Assets

Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value $ 148,587 
Equity securities available for sale, at fair value 11,111 
Other invested assets 1,647 
Total investments 161,345 

Cash and cash equivalents 8,990 
Cash � restricted 1,880 
Accrued investment income 706 
Premium and maintenance fees receivable 16,493 
Reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid loss adjustments 28,491 
Deferred policy acquisition costs 2,545 
Management fees and other receivables 9,488 
Subrogation recoverables 509 
Deferred tax assets 5,577 
Property and equipment, net 556 
Other assets 2,625 
Total assets $ 239,205 

10
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

    December 31, 2006
Liabilities

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 110,089 
Unearned premiums and maintenance fees 39,786 
Reinsurance premiums payable 45 
Funds held under reinsurance treaties 4,003 
Trade accounts payable 2,228 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 9,457 
Federal income tax payable 650 
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 9,179 

Total liabilities 175,437 

Minority interest 21 

Shareholders� equity

Common stock 480 
Additional paid-in capital 42,707 
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax 633 
Retained earnings 19,927 

Total shareholders� equity 63,747 

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 239,205 

11
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AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP, INC.

PRO FORMA CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
REVENUES
Gross premiums and maintenance fees written $ 15,045 $ 17,324 $ 30,511 $ 37,439 
Premiums ceded 3,418 522 1,011 (2,255)
Change in unearned premiums and

   maintenance fees 1,983 1,845 5,235 2,138 
Net premiums and maintenance fees earned 20,446 19,691 36,757 37,322 

Investment income, net of investment expense 2,506 1,842 4,666 3,548 
Realized capital gains (loss), net (49) 34 (257) 143 
Management services 36 - 36 - 
Financial services 6,972 4,662 11,882 8,119 
Other revenue 16 88 49 189 

Total revenues 29,927 26,317 53,133 49,321 

EXPENSES

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 3,162 6,572 14,126 18,222 
Other underwriting expenses 2,434 2,241 5,791 4,880 
Change in deferred policy acquisition costs 157 109 298 71 
Financial services expenses 6,330 4,158 10,767 7,443 
General and administrative 1,421 1,724 2,326 2,133 
Loss from impairment of goodwill 1,247 1,247 1,247 1,247 

Total expenses 14,751 16,051 34,555 33,996 

Income from operations 15,176 10,266 18,578 15,325 
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Income tax expense 5,368 3,708 6,511 5,224 
Minority interests 1 1 2 2 

Net income before extraordinary gain $ 9,807 $ 6,557 $ 12,065 $ 10,099 

Extraordinary gain 2,264 - 2,264 - 

Net income $ 12,071 $ 6,557 $ 14,329 $ 10,099 
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4.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill arose with the re-purchase of an interest in one of our subsidiaries, APS Insurance Services, from the
minority holder in 2003. Goodwill was determined to exist based on earnings expected to be generated from the
management contract with API. With the purchase of API by us and termination of the management agreement, the
question of impairment of the goodwill was raised.  Upon review, we determined that the original circumstances
creating the goodwill no longer exist and that the entire $1,247,000 balance is impaired and should be written down.

5.

Investments

Available-For-Sale Fixed Maturities. Of the total $188,906,000 portfolio balance in available-for-sale fixed income
maturities at June 30, 2007, all but $701,000 is considered investment grade securities. Our investment strategy is
reviewed and approved by our board of directors annually. The primary goal of our investment strategy for our
insurance services segment is to ensure that we have sufficient assets to meet our obligations to our policyholders, and
our secondary goal is to provide investment income. The investment plan for our insurance services segment provides
guidance on diversification, duration of the portfolio, sector allocation and specific restrictions, such as the size of
investment in any one issue and limitations on the purchases of securities rated lower than �A� by Moody�s, Standard
and Poor�s or a comparable rating institution.

Our insurance services segment employs an investment strategy that emphasizes asset quality to minimize the credit
risk of our investment portfolio and also matches fixed-income maturities to anticipated claim payments and
expenditures or other liabilities. The amounts and types of investments that may be made by our insurance services
segment are regulated under the Texas Insurance Code. We utilize APS Financial, our broker/dealer subsidiary, as our
fixed-income advisor and also utilize two outside managers to manage our equity portfolio. Our boards of directors�
review our investment managers� performance and compliance with our investment guidelines on a quarterly basis.

Virtually our entire fixed-income portfolio consists of securities rated �A� or higher from any of Standard and Poor�s,
Moody�s or Fitch with the exception of two bonds totaling approximately $701,000. The following table reflects the
composition of our fixed-income portfolios by securities ratings categories of the issuers, as of June 30, 2007 (dollars
in thousands). In cases where the rating agencies had a different rating assigned to a security, the classification in the
table used the lower rating.

Rating Category Fair Value Percentage
AAA / Aaa $ 165,031 88%
AA / Aa 9,983 5%
A / A 13,191 7%
Non-investment grade 701 -

Total $ 188,906 100%

We account for our fixed-income and equity securities as available-for-sale. The majority of unrealized losses on the
bonds was caused by increases in market interest rates and is not due to changes in the credit worthiness of the issuer.
Virtually all bonds with an unrealized loss over 12 months or more are investment grade securities.
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Available-For-Sale Equity Securities.  Our equity portfolio consists of $9,731,000 in available-for-sale equity
securities, comprising 4.9% of total investments at market value as of June 30, 2007. The majority of unrealized losses
related to stocks are due to market fluctuations resulting from cyclical and other economic pressures. We believe that
these unrealized losses are temporary and that the fair value will recover to a level equal to or greater than our cost
basis. An additional impairment charge was taken in the current quarter on our investment in Financial Industries
Corporation (�FIC�) having previously resolved that declines in FIC�s stock price will be considered to be �other than
temporary� as defined in Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, as amended. Our policy in regards to our investment in FIC is that we will
record pretax charges to earnings should the common stock price on the last day of each interim or annual period fall
below the adjusted cost basis of our investment in FIC. During the three months ended June 30, 2007, that charge
totaled $231,000, bringing the total amount written off in 2007 to $655,000. As a consequence of these write-downs,
our basis in this stock has declined to $5.90 per share which equals the fair market value of FIC common stock at June
30, 2007. While we continue to have the ability and the intent to hold the stock indefinitely, we previously determined
that the additional uncertainty created by FIC�s previous late SEC filings, together with its continued de-listing from
any national stock exchanges, dictated that the current quarter decline should be viewed as other than temporary. We
will continue to monitor and evaluate the situation at FIC.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investments in fixed income and equity securities at June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2007
Cost or

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

Fixed maturities:
U.S. treasury notes/bills $ 9,366 $ 4 $ 62 $ 9,308 
U.S. government agency mortgage-backed
bonds

34,558 - 807 33,751 

U.S. government agency collateralized
mortgage obligations 53,361 3 1,269 52,095 
Collateralized mortgage obligations 56,267 4 1,961 54,310 
U.S. agency bonds and notes 21,076 4 17 21,063 
Government tax-exempt bonds 16,001 - 440 15,561 
Corporate bonds 2,872 14 68 2,818 
Total fixed maturities 193,501 29 4,624 188,906 

Equity securities 9,482 386 137 9,731 

Total fixed maturities and equity securities $ 202,983 $ 415 $ 4,761 $ 198,637 
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December 31, 2006
Cost or

Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Estimated
Fair Value

Fixed maturities:
U.S. treasury notes/bills $ 1,999 $ - $ 5 $ 1,994 
U.S. government agency collateralized mortgage
obligations 180 10 - 190 
U.S. agency bonds and notes 13,755 1 14 13,742 
Corporate bonds 682 28 - 710 
Total fixed maturities 16,616 39 19 16,636 

Equity securities 4,073 330 - 4,403 

Total fixed maturities and equity securities $ 20,689 $ 369 $ 19 $ 21,039 

The securities acquired as part of API were revalued to market value as of the date of the merger, April 1, 2007. For
June 30, 2007 the unrealized losses in fixed maturity and equity investments increased to $4,761,000 primarily as a
result of rising interest rates. The fixed maturity investments are virtually all investment grade securities. We have the
ability and intent to hold securities with unrealized losses until they recover their value, which may be at maturity. As
of June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, the only impairment in value resulting in a write-down against income
involved our equity investment in FIC, explained in more detail on the prior page. In the future, information may
come to light or circumstances may change that would cause us to write-down or sell any of our fixed maturity or
equity securities and incur a realized loss.

Gross realized gains and losses on fixed maturity and equity securities included in the statement of operations for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Six Months
Ended
June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Realized gains (losses)

Fixed maturities:
Gross realized gain $ 4 $ - $ 3 $ 7 
Gross realized loss (4) (1) (4) 0 
Net realized gain (loss) (0) (1) (1) 7 
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Equities:
Gross realized gain 260 13 270 13 
Gross realized loss (309) - (733) - 
Net realized gain (loss) (49) 13 (463) 13 

Total net realized gain (loss) $ (49) $ 12 $ (464) $ 20 

15

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

30



The major categories of the net investment income included in the statement operations are summarized for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
Investment income:
Fixed maturities $ 2,307 $ 158 $ 2,523 $ 302 
Equity securities 40 6 49 12 
Short-term investments and other 181 59 289  105 
Finance charges on premiums receivable 28 � 28 � 
Structured annuity 20 � 20 � 

Total investment income 2,576 223 2,909 419 

Investment expense (70) � (70) � 

Net investment income $ 2,506 $ 223 $ 2,839 $ 419 

In accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments In Debt and Equity Securities, we evaluate our
investment securities on at least a quarterly basis for declines in market value below cost for the purpose of
determining whether these declines represent other than temporary declines. A decline in the fair value of a security
below cost judged to be other than temporary is recognized as a loss in the current period and reduces the cost basis of
the security. In subsequent periods, we would measure gain or losses or decline in value against the adjusted cost basis
of the security. The following factors are considered in determining whether an investment decline is �other than
temporary�:

•

The extent to which the market value of the security is less than its cost basis,

•

The length of time for which the market value of the security is less than its cost basis,

•

The financial condition and near-term prospects of the security�s issuer, taking into consideration the economic
prospects of the issuer�s industry and geographical region, to the extent that information is publicly available and
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•

Our ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in
market value.

The following two tables reflect securities whose fair values were lower than the related cost basis at June 30, 2007
and December 31, 2006, respectively (in thousands). However, these declines in value were not deemed to be �other
than temporary�. The tables show the fair value and the unrealized losses, aggregated by investment category and
category of duration that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position. For the first six
months ended June 30, 2007 and for the year end December 31, 2006, the only impairment in value resulting in a
write-down against income involved our equity investment in FIC, explained in more detail on page 16.
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Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

June 30, 2007: Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

U.S. treasury
notes/bills $ 3,356 $ 62 $ 1,000 $ � $ 4,356 $ 62 
U.S. government
agency
mortgage-backed
bonds 30,301 807 � � 30,301 807 
U.S. government
agency collateralized
mortgage obligations 48,040 1,259 3,030 10 51,070 1,269 
Collateralized
mortgage obligations 51,800 1,961 � � 51,800 1,961 
U.S. agency bonds
and notes 12,911 16 2,465 1 15,376 17 
Government
tax-exempt bonds 15,561 440 � � 15,561 440 
Corporate bonds 2,117 68 � � 2,117 68 

Total Bonds 164,086 4,613 6,495 11 170,581 4,624 
Equity Securities 2,698 93 470 44 3,168 137 

Total temporarily
impaired securities $ 166,784 $ 4,706 $ 6,965 $ 55 $ 173,749 $ 4,761 

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
December 31,
2006:

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Estimated
Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

U.S. treasury
notes/bills $ 1,995 $ 5 $ � $ � $ 1,995 $ 5 
U.S. agency bonds
and notes 9,459 12 991 2 10,450 14 
Total Bonds 11,454 17 991 2 12,445 19 

Equity Securities � � 332 � 332 � 
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Total temporarily
impaired securities $ 11,454 $ 17 $ 1,323 $ 2 $ 12,777 $ 19 
The majority of the unrealized losses on the fixed maturities were caused by increases in market interest rates and not
due to changes in the credit worthiness of the issuer. All fixed maturities with an unrealized loss over 12 months or
more are investment grade securities. The majority of the unrealized losses related to stocks are due to market
fluctuations resulting from cyclical and other economic pressures. As of June 30, 2007, we believe that these
unrealized losses are temporary and that the fair value will recover to a level equal to or greater than the cost basis. In
addition, as of June 30, 2007, we had the ability and intent to hold these investments until there is a recovery in fair
value, which may be maturity for the applicable securities.

As a result of our acquisition of API, the Texas Department of Insurance (�TDI�) required that funds be set aside in an
escrow account with a bank to remain until the aggregate remaining redemption obligation of our Series A redeemable
preferred stock is less than the amount of the escrow balance, with no withdrawals to be made from this escrow
account without prior approval from TDI. To satisfy this condition of the merger, we purchased a fixed income
security in March of 2007 in the amount of $2,500,000 paying 5% interest and maturing in March of 2008 and this
security is included in fixed maturities, available for sale.
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At June 30, 2007 investments with a fair market value of $1,321,900 were on deposit with state insurance departments
to satisfy regulatory requirements and this security is included in fixed maturities, available for sale.

6.

Cash -- Restricted

Cash � Restricted represents cash deposits advanced from customers for trade claim transactions that do not close by
the end of the period. It occurs when a customer remits payment for a transaction by check instead of via wire transfer.
As checks of this size normally take several business days to clear, we ask our customers to pay in advance for
transactions expected to close in the near future. At the time of receipt, Cash � Restricted and Accounts Payable are
increased for an equal amount as no part of this cash is ours until the transaction closes.

7.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance Premiums Ceded.  Certain premiums are ceded to other insurance companies under reinsurance
agreements. These reinsurance agreements provide us with increased capacity to write additional risk and the ability to
write specific risk within its capital resources and underwriting guidelines. API enters into reinsurance contracts,
which provide coverage for losses in excess of the retention of $250,000 on individual claims and beginning in 2002
through 2005, $350,000 on multiple insured claims related to a single occurrence. The 2006 and 2007 reinsurance
treaties provide for these same terms with API retaining an additional 10% of the aforementioned retention levels for
2006 and 20% for 2007. The reinsurance contracts for 2002 through 2007 contain variable premium ceding rates
based on loss experience. The ceded premium charged under these contracts will depend upon the development of
ultimate losses ceded to the reinsurers under their retrospective treaties. For the quarter ended June 30, 2007, we
recorded favorable development to ceded premiums of $5,636,000 related to prior year variable premium reinsurance
treaties as a result of lower estimated ultimate loss and loss adjustment expenses for treaty years 2002 through 2006.
The favorable development reflects reductions in our estimates of claim severity as a result of claim closures at less
than reserved amounts.

In addition to an adjustment to premiums ceded, estimates of ultimate reinsurance ceded premium amounts compared
to the amounts paid on a provisional basis give rise to a balance sheet asset classified as �Other amounts receivable
under reinsurance contracts� or a balance sheet liability classified as �Funds held under reinsurance treaties.�
Furthermore, each retrospective treaty requires a 24- or 36-month holding period before any premium adjustments or
cash can be returned or paid.  The ultimate settlement amount is not determined until all losses have been settled under
the respective treaties. As of June 30, 2007, API had recorded a balance sheet asset, �Other amounts receivable under
reinsurance contracts� of $2,680,000 and a balance sheet liability, �Funds held under reinsurance treaties� of $7,371,000,
which represent the differences between the estimates of ultimate reinsurance premiums ceded amounts for the 2002
through 2007 treaty years as compared to the amounts paid on a provisional basis.

Reinsurance Recoverables.  Ceded reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses are recorded as reinsurance
recoverables. Reinsurance recoverables are the estimated amount of future loss payments that will be recovered from
reinsurers, and represent the portion of losses incurred during the period that are estimated to be allocable to
reinsurers. There are several factors that can directly affect the ability to accurately forecast the reinsurance
recoverables. Many of the factors discussed in Note 8 related to the sensitivities of forecasting total loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves also apply when analyzing reinsurance recoverables. Since API cedes excess losses
above $250,000 on individual claims and $350,000 on multiple insured claims, the trends related to severity
significantly affect this estimate. Current individual claims severity can be above or fall below API�s retention level
over the period it takes to resolve a claim.
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Similar to the estimate for reserves, due to the long-tailed nature of the medical professional liability line of insurance,
relatively small changes in the actuarial assumptions for trends, inflation, severity, frequency for projected ultimate
loss and loss adjustment expense reserves can have a greater impact on the recorded balance for reinsurance
recoverables than with most other property and casualty insurance lines. While we believe that our estimate for
ultimate projected losses related to loss and loss adjustment expense is adequate based on reported and open claim
counts, there can be no assurance that additional significant reserve enhancements will not be necessary in the future
given the many variables inherent in such estimates and the extended period of time that it can take for claim patterns
to emerge.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve API from its obligations to policyholders. API continually monitors its reinsurers
to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. Any amount found to be uncollectible is
written off in the period in which the uncollectible amount is identified. API requires letters of credit from any
reinsurance company that does not meet certain regulatory requirements, and/or credit ratings. As of June 30, 2007, all
of API�s reinsurance contracts were with companies in strong financial condition, and we believe there is no need to
establish an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance recoverable. API has not experienced any material problems
collecting from its reinsurers.

Unsecured reinsurance recoverables at June 30, 2007, that exceeded 10% of total reinsurance paid and unpaid loss and
loss adjustment expenses are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Company Name June 30, 2007
Transatlantic Reinsurance $ 4,652 
Swiss Reinsurance 14,814 

Both Transatlantic Reinsurance and Swiss Reinsurance are A.M. Best rated �A+� (Superior).

8.

Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense

The reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represent the estimated liability for unpaid claims reported
to the Company, plus claims incurred but not reported and the related estimated loss adjustment expenses. The reserve
for losses and loss adjustment expenses is determined based on our actual experience, available industry data and
projections as to future claims frequency, severity, inflationary trends and settlement patterns.

We write medical malpractice insurance policies which have a lengthy period for reporting a claim (tail coverage) and
a long process of litigating a claim through the courts and whose risk factors expose its reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses to significant variability. These conditions subject API�s open reported claims and incurred but
not reported claims to increases due to inflation, changes in legal proceedings, and changes in the law. While the
anticipated affects of inflation is implicitly considered when estimating reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses,
the increase in average severity of claims is caused by a number of factors. Future average severities are projected
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based on historical trends adjusted for changes in underwriting standards, policy provisions, and general economic
trends. Those anticipated trends are monitored based on actual experience and are modified as necessary to reflect any
changes in the development of ultimate losses and loss adjustment expenses. These specific risks, combined with the
variability that is inherent in any reserve estimate, could result in significant adverse deviation from our carried
reserve amounts. Settlement of claims is subject to considerable uncertainty. We believe the reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses are reasonably stated as of June 30, 2007.

As a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007, we recorded $3,162,000 for losses and loss adjustment expenses
for the three months and the six months ended June 30, 2007, which included $11,661,000 for the current accident
year and $8,499,000 of favorable development for prior report years.  The $8,499,000 of favorable development was
primarily the result of loss severity for the 2002 through 2006 report years developing favorably compared to prior
period estimates. In addition, the total number of claims closed with indemnity for these report years were less than
prior estimates.
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9.

Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. We believe
that any liabilities arising from these actions will not have a significant adverse affect on our financial condition or
results of operations.

10.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average shares outstanding without any dilutive affects considered.
Diluted  earnings per share reflect dilution from all contingently issuable shares, such as options and convertible debt.
A reconciliation of income and weighted average shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic and diluted
income per share from operations follows:

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2007
Income

(Numerator)
Shares

(Denominator)
Per Share
Amount

Net income before extraordinary gain $ 9,807,000 
Extraordinary gain, net of tax 2,264,000 
Basic EPS:
Net income $ 12,071,000 4,955,000 $ 2.44 
Effect of dilutive securities -- 136,000 
Diluted EPS:
Net income $ 12,071,000 5,091,000 $ 2.37 

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
Income

(Numerator)
Shares

(Denominator)
Per Share
Amount

Basic EPS:
Net income $ 598,000 2,762,000 $ 0.22 
Diluted EPS: -- 155,000 
Effect of dilutive securities
Net income $ 598,000 2,917,000 $ 0.21 
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For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Income

(Numerator)
Shares

(Denominator)
Per Share
Amount

Net income before extraordinary gain $ 9,712,000 
Extraordinary gain, net of tax 2,264,000 
Basic EPS:
Net income $ 11,976,000 3,894,000 $ 3.08 
Effect of dilutive securities -- 132,000 
Diluted EPS:
Net income $ 11,976,000 4,026,000 $ 2.97 
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For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006
Income

(Numerator)
Shares

(Denominator)
Per Share
Amount

Basic EPS:
Net income $ 1,160,000 2,762,000 $ 0.42 
Diluted EPS: -- 174,000 
Effect of dilutive securities
Net income $ 1,160,000 2,936,000 $ 0.40 

11.

Segment Information

The Company�s segments are distinct by type of service provided. Comparative financial data for the three- and
six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are shown as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Operating revenue:
Insurance services $ 22,842 $ 3,175 $ 26,499 $ 6,830 
Financial services 7,051 4,804 12,363 8,403 
Corporate 809 503 652 2,792 
Total Segment Revenues $ 30,702 $ 8,482 $ 39,514 $ 18,025 

Reconciliation to consolidated
statement

of operations:
Total segment revenues $ 30,702 $ 8,482 $ 39,514 $ 18,025 
Less:  Intercompany dividends (775) (268) (775) (2,368)
Total revenues $ 29,927 $ 8,214 $ 38,739 $ 15,657 

Operating income:
Insurance services $ 15,842 $ 528 $ 15,676 $ 1,429 
Financial services 721 644 1,671 958 
Corporate (1,387) (244) (2,315) (574)
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Total segments operating income $ 15,176 $ 928 $ 15,032 $ 1,813 

Income tax expense 5,368 329 5,319 651 
Minority interest 1 1 1 2 

Income form operations before
extraordinary gain

9,807 598 9,712 1,160 

Extraordinary gain, net of taxes 2,264 -- 2,264 -- 
Net income $ 12,071 $ 598 $ 11,976 $ 1,160 
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June 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Balance Sheet Data:
Identifiable assets
Insurance services $ 234,130 $ 5,625 
Financial services 6,791 7,027 
Corporate 42,456 23,624 
Total $ 283,377 $ 36,276 

12.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based
Payment (SFAS 123 (R)). The standard amends SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and concludes
that services received from employees in exchange for stock-based compensation results in a cost to the employer that
must be recognized in the financial statements. The cost of such awards should be measured at fair value at grant date.

On January 1, 2006 we adopted SFAS No. 123(R). We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to
determine the fair value of stock-based awards, consistent with that used for pro forma disclosures under SFAS No.
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. We have elected the modified prospective transition method as
permitted by SFAS No, 123(R) and accordingly prior periods have not been restated to reflect the impact of SFAS No.
123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) requires that stock-based compensation be recorded for all new and unvested stock options
expected to vest as the requisite service is rendered beginning January 1, 2006, the first day of our 2006 fiscal year.
Stock-based compensation expense for awards granted on or before December 31, 2005, but unvested as of that date,
is based on the grant date fair value as determined under the pro forma provisions of SFAS No. 123. For the three and
six months ended June 30, 2007, we recorded compensation cost related to stock options of $103,000 and $1,019,000
and a related reduction in income taxes of $35,000 and $346,000, respectively. The compensation cost is the total fair
value, at date of grant, of shares that vested during the three and six month periods. No compensation costs were
capitalized in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007.

During the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007, 10,000 and 26,000 options were exercised with an
intrinsic value of $112,000 and $321,000, respectively. We received proceeds of $53,000 and $133,000 from the
exercise of these options during the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively. Based on unvested
options outstanding at June 30, 2007 compensation costs to be recorded in future periods are expected to be
recognized as follows: 2007, $250,000; 2008, $499,000; 2009, $217,000; and 2010, $14,000.

We have adopted, with shareholder approval, the �2005 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan� (�Incentive
Plan�). The Incentive Plan provides for the issuance of up to 650,000 shares of common stock to our directors and key
employees. A total of 547,000 of these options have been granted as of June 30, 2007 and 103,000 are available for
grants. Of those granted, 6,000 shares have been exercised, 285,000 options are exercisable and 256,000 are not yet
exercisable. The previous plan, �1995 Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan,� provided for the issuance of
1,600,000 shares of common stock to our directors and key employees.  All of the approved options have been granted
as of June 30, 2007, 1,183,000 shares have been exercised, 258,000 shares are exercisable and 159,000 options have
been canceled. Upon the exercise of an option we issue the shares from our authorized, but unissued, shares.
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The exercise price for each non-qualified option share is determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors (�the Committee�). The exercise price of a qualified incentive stock option has to be at least 100% of the fair
market value of such shares on the date of grant of the option.  Under the Plans, option grants are limited to a
maximum of ten-year terms; however, the Committee has issued all currently outstanding grants with five-year terms.
The Committee also determines vesting for each option grant and traditionally has had options vest in two to three
approximately equal annual installments beginning one year from the date of grant.

Presented below is a summary of the stock options held by our employees and our directors and the related
transactions for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007.

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Shares   

Weighted
Average
Exercise
    Price       Shares   

Weighted
Average
Exercise
   Price   

Balance at beginning of period 760,000 $ 12.42 467,000 $ 9.96 
Options granted 50,000 17.00 360,000 15.90 
Options exercised (10,000) 5.36 (27,000) 5.05 
Options forfeited  (1,000)   15.90   (1,000)   15.90 
Balance at end of period 799,000 $ 12.79 799,000 $ 12.79 
Options exercisable 543,000 $ 10.84 543,000 $ 10.84 

The weighted average fair value of Company stock options granted is $5.07 per option for the six months ended June
30, 2007. The fair value of the options was calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model with the
following assumptions:

Six Months
ended

June 30, 2007
Expected option term  3.7 years
Expected volatility  31.30%
Expected dividend yield  1.73%
Risk-free rate of return  4.48%

The expected volatility assumptions we used are based on the historical volatility of our common stock over the most
recent period commensurate with the estimated expected life of our stock options, such estimated life being based on
the historical experience of our stock option exercises. The following table summarizes our outstanding and
exercisable options at June 30, 2007:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
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Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
   Price   

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value (1)

Average
Remaining
Contractual
     Life     Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
   Price   

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value (1)

Average
Remaining
Contractual
     Life     

799,000 $ 12.79 $ 4,880,000 3.5 yrs. 543,000 $ 10.84 $ 4,377,000 2.9 yrs.
(1)

Based on the $18.90 closing price of our stock at June 30, 2007.
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13.

Secondary Stock Offering

On June 19, 2007, we announced that our public offering of 2,100,000 shares of common stock had priced at $16.50
per share. Of the shares offered, 2,000,000 were offered by us, and Kenneth S. Shifrin, our Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer, offered 100,000 of the 582,554 shares he owned at that date.

Net proceeds received by us from the secondary offering were approximately $30,237,000 after deducting
underwriting, legal, accounting, and publication fees. Of this total, we contributed $10,000,000 to API to strengthen
its capacity to underwrite insurance risks. The balance of the proceeds has been invested primarily in U.S. government
and U.S. government agency securities and is available for general corporate purposes including possible acquisitions.

Total common shares outstanding increased from approximately 4,819,000 before the secondary offering to
approximately 6,819,000 afterwards.

14.

Subsequent Event

Pursuant to the secondary offering, the underwriters of the offering were granted a 30-day period to exercise an option
to purchase up to 315,000 additional common shares from us. On July 12, 2007 we announced that the underwriters
had exercised their over-allotment option to purchase all of these additional shares of common stock at the public
offering price of $16.50 per share. Net proceeds received by us related to this over-allotment option were
approximately $4,886,000.

Total common shares outstanding increased from approximately 6,819,000 before the sale of the over-allotment
option to approximately 7,134,000 afterwards.

15.

Preferred Stock

In conjunction with the acquisition of API we issued 10,198 shares of Series A redeemable preferred stock, par value
$1.00 per share, from the 10,500 shares authorized. Holders of Series A redeemable preferred stock are entitled to
cumulative dividends thereon at the rate of three percent (3%) per annum payable on the remaining redemption value
per share, in priority to the payments of dividends on the common shares. Holders of Series A redeemable preferred
stock have no preemptive rights and have the same voting rights as the holders of APSG common stock. The shares
are non-certificated and mandatorily redeemable. They will be redeemed ratably at not less than $1,000,000 per year,
with all remaining outstanding shares being redeemed by December 31, 2016. In the event of any liquidation, the
holders of Series A redeemable preferred stock receive an amount equal to the remaining redemption value before any
distribution is made to the holders of APSG common stock.

16.

Income Taxes
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As further disclosed in the Extraordinary Gain section of our Management�s Discussion and Analysis section of this
Form 10-Q, we recorded a tax-free extraordinary gain in the current quarter in the amount of $2,264,000 as a result of
our acquisition of API. The result of this extraordinary gain was to reduce our effective income tax rate from
approximately 35.5% to approximately 30.8%.
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ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

For purposes of this Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(�MD&A�), �APS,� �we,� �our,� �us� and the �Company� refer to American Physicians Service Group, Inc., together with its
subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise. The following MD&A should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, included in Part I,
Item 1, As well as the audited, consolidated financial statements and notes in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006, which was filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the
�SEC�) on March 28, 2007.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act,
Section 21E of the Exchange Act and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, about the Company that
are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this document
are forward-looking statements.

You can identify forward-looking statements by the use of words such as �may,� �target,� �should,� �will,� �could,� �estimates,�
�predicts,� �potential,� �continue,� �anticipates,� �projects,� �forecasts,� �believes,� �plans,� �expects,� �future� and �intends� and similar
expressions which are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on
beliefs and assumptions made by management using currently available information, such as market and industry
materials, experts� reports and opinions and trends. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our control and difficult to predict and
could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. In
evaluating forward-looking statements, you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described in �Risk
Factors� in Part II, Item IA. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are
expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements and risk factors contained in this quarterly report.
Forward-looking statements contained in this quarterly report reflect our view only as of the date of this report. We do
not have any obligation, other than as required by law, to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The following important factors, in addition to those discussed under �Risk Factors� in Part II, Item 1A, could affect the
future results of our operations and could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by
such forward-looking statements:

�

general economic conditions, either nationally or in our market area, that are worse than expected;

�

changes in the healthcare industry;

�

regulatory and legislative actions or decisions that adversely affect our business plans or operations;

�

inflation and changes in the interest rate environment, the performance of financial markets and/or changes in the
securities markets;
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�

uncertainties inherent in the estimate of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and reinsurance; changes in the
availability or cost of reinsurance;

�

significantly increased competition among insurance providers;
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�

potential losses and litigation risk associated with our financial services businesses;

�

loss of key executives, personnel, accounts or customers;

�

our ability to renew our existing reinsurance or obtain new reinsurance; and

�

failure of our reinsurers to pay claims in a timely manner.

The foregoing factors should not be construed as exhaustive and we caution you not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this quarterly report.  In addition to any risks and
uncertainties specifically identified in the text surrounding forward-looking statements, you should consult with our
other filings under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Act of 1934, for factors that could cause our actual
results to differ materially from those presented.

Business Overview

We provide (1) insurance services, specifically medical professional liability insurance in Texas and (2) financial
services, including brokerage and investment services to individuals and institutions.

Insurance Services. We provide medical professional liability insurance in Texas, where our insurance subsidiary,
API, has written business for over 30 years. API is authorized to do business in the States of Texas and Arkansas and
specializes in writing medical professional liability insurance for physicians, dentists and other healthcare providers.
API currently insures 4,802 physicians, dentists, and other healthcare providers, the vast majority of which are in
Texas. Over 99% of API�s premiums are written through purchasing groups, which in Texas currently subjects us to
less stringent state regulation of premium rates and policy forms. Historically, we operated as the attorney-in-fact
manager for API since 1975. In April 2007, we acquired API, thus combining our insurance management experience
with an insurance underwriting entity to allow for the increased possibility for expansion into new markets and to
assist our efforts for continued growth in existing markets.

Financial Services. We provide investment and investment advisory services to institutions and individuals
throughout the United States through the following subsidiaries:

o

APS Financial. APS Financial is a fully licensed broker/dealer that provides brokerage and investment services
primarily to institutional and high net worth individual clients. APS Financial also provides portfolio accounting,
analysis and other services to insurance companies, banks and public funds. We recognize commission revenue, and
the related compensation expense, on a trade date basis.

o

APS Capital. APS Capital is dedicated to the clearing and settlement of trades involving syndicated bank loans, trade
claims and distressed private loan portfolios. We seek to develop business with clients who trade in the high-yield
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bond market. We recognize commission revenue, and the related compensation expense, when the transaction is
complete and fully funded.

o

APS Asset Management. APS Asset Management, a registered investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act
of 1940, manages fixed income and equity assets for institutional and individual clients on a fee basis. We recognize
fee revenues monthly based on the amount of funds under management.
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Recent Transactions

Acquisition.  On April 1, 2007, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of API. The business combination
is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the purchase price has been
allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair values at the date of acquisition. The total purchase
price was $45,167,000 and consisted of consideration of 1,982,499 shares of the Company�s common stock, valued at
a per share price of $17.635, or $34,961,000 in aggregate, $35,000 in cash paid in lieu of fractional shares of common
stock, 10,197.95 shares of preferred stock valued at $9,179,000, plus costs to complete the acquisition of $992,000.
We are required to redeem at least $1 million of the preferred stock each calendar year beginning in 2007, until
December 31, 2016, at which time all of the preferred stock must have been redeemed. The preferred stock has a
cumulative dividend equal to 3% of the outstanding redemption value per year.  On June 1, 2007, we made the first
required payment, redeeming 10% of the preferred shares outstanding and paying the dividend.

Secondary Stock Offering. On June 19, 2007 we announced that our public offering of 2,100,000 shares of common
stock had priced at $16.50 per share. Of the shares offered, 2,000,000 were offered by us, and Kenneth S. Shifrin, our
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, offered 100,000 of the 582,554 shares he owned at that date.

The underwriters of the offering were granted a 30-day period to exercise an option to purchase up to 315,000
additional common shares from APS. On July 12, we announced that the underwriters had exercised their
over-allotment option to purchase all of these additional shares of common stock at the public offering price of $16.50
per share. Total common shares outstanding rose from approximately 6,819,000 before the over-allotment to
approximately 7,134,000 afterwards.

Net proceeds received by the Company from the secondary offering, including the over allotment, were approximately
$35,000,000 after subtracting underwriting, legal, accounting and publication fees. Of this total, we contributed
$10,000,000 to API to strengthen its capacity to underwrite insurance risks. The balance of the proceeds has been
invested primarily in U.S. government and U.S. government agency securities and is available for general corporate
purposes including possible acquisitions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES.

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to: impairment of assets; bad debts; income taxes; and contingencies and litigation. We base
our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies and estimates affect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. We periodically review the carrying value
of our assets to determine if events and circumstances exist indicating that assets might be impaired. If facts and
circumstances support this possibility of impairment, our management will prepare undiscounted and discounted cash
flow projections, which require judgments that are both subjective and complex. Management may also obtain
independent valuations.
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Revenue Recognition. Historically, our insurance services segment recognized revenues in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin (�SAB�) No. 101, Revenue Recognition in the Financial Statements. Prior to April 1, 2007, our
Insurance Services revenues were historically related to management fees based on the earned premiums of API and
included a profit sharing component related to API�s annual earnings. Management fees equaled 13.5% of API�s earned
premiums before payment of reinsurance premiums plus profit sharing equal to 50% of API�s pre-tax earnings up to a
maximum of 3% of earned premiums before payment of reinsurance premiums. Management fees were recorded,
based upon the terms of the management agreement, in the period the related premiums are earned by API. API
recognizes premiums as earned ratably over the terms of the related policy. The profit sharing component was
historically recognized in the fourth quarter when it was certain API would have an annual profit. In 2007, however,
since the management contract ended March 31, 2007, we recognized the quarter�s profit in March, based on our
ability to fully determine the profit sharing base.

As a result of the acquisition, our insurance services segment recognizes revenue in accordance with SFAS No. 60,
Accounting and Reporting of Insurance Enterprises. We issue policies written on a claims-made basis. A claims-made
policy provides coverage for claims reported during the policy year. We charge both a base premium and a premium
maintenance fee. Policies are written for a one-year term and premiums and maintenance fees are earned on a pro rata
basis over the term of the policy. Premium maintenance fees are charged to offset the costs incurred by API to issue
and maintain policies. Unearned premiums and maintenance fees are determined on a monthly pro rata basis. Upon
termination of coverage, policyholders may purchase an extended reporting period (tail) endorsement for additional
periods of time. These extended reporting period coverage endorsement premiums are earned when written.

Our financial services revenues are composed primarily of commissions on securities trades and clearing of trade
claims and asset management fees. Revenues related to securities transactions are recognized on a trade date basis.
Revenues from the clearing and settlement of trades involving syndicated bank loans, trade claims and distressed
private loan portfolios are recognized when the transaction is complete and fully funded. Asset management fees are
recognized as a percentage of assets under management during the period based upon the terms of agreements with the
applicable customers.

Investments. We account for our equity and fixed-income securities as available-for-sale. In the event a decline in fair
value of an investment occurs, management may be required to determine if the decline in market value is other than
temporary. Our policy is to account for investments as available-for-sale securities which requires that we assess
fluctuations in fair value and determine whether these fluctuations are temporary or �other than temporary� as defined in
SFAS No. 115, �Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,� as amended. Management�s
assessments as to the nature of a decline in fair value are based on the quoted market prices at the end of a period, the
length of time an investment�s fair value has been in decline and our ability and intent to hold the investment until a
recovery in value. If the fair value is less than the carrying value and the decline is determined to be other than
temporary, a write-down is recorded against earnings in the period such determination is made.

Asset Impairment. We periodically review the carrying value of our assets to determine if events and circumstances
exist indicating that assets might be impaired. If facts and circumstances support this possibility of impairment, our
management will prepare undiscounted and discounted cash flow projections, which require judgments that are both
subjective and complex. Management may also obtain independent valuations.

Business Combinations. We recorded all assets and liabilities acquired in the acquisition of API, including goodwill,
indefinite-lived intangibles, and other intangibles, at fair value as required by SFAS No. 141. The initial recording of
goodwill and other intangibles requires subjective judgments concerning estimates of the fair value of the acquired
assets and liabilities. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are subject to annual tests for impairment
or more often if events or circumstances indicate they may be impaired. Other identified intangible assets are
amortized over their estimated useful lives and are subject to impairment if events or circumstances indicate a possible
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Reserve for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense. Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves represent management�s
best estimate of the ultimate costs of all reported and unreported losses incurred. The reserves for unpaid losses and
loss adjustment expenses are estimated using actuarial analysis. These estimates include expectations of what the
ultimate settlement and administration of claims will cost based on the Company�s assessments of facts and
circumstances then known, review of historical settlement patterns, estimates in trends in loss severity, frequency,
legal theories of liability and other factors. Other factors include the nature of the injury, the judicial climate where the
insured event occurred and trends in health care costs. In addition, variables in reserve estimation can be affected by
internal and external events, such as economic inflation, legal trends and legislative changes. The estimation of
medical professional liability loss and loss adjustment expense is inherently difficult. Injuries may not be discovered
until years after the incident, or a claimant may delay pursuing recovery for damages. Medical liability claims are
typically resolved over an extended period of time, often five years or more.

The combination of changing conditions and the extended time required for claim resolution results in a loss
estimation process that requires actuarial skill and the application of judgment, and such estimates require periodic
revisions. Management performs an in-depth review of the reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
periodically with assistance from our outside consulting actuary. Management is continually reviewing and updating
the data underlying the estimation of the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and we make adjustments that we
believe the emerging data indicates. Any adjustments to reserves that are considered necessary are reflected in the
results of operations in the period the estimates are changed.

Reinsurance Premiums Ceded. Under our primary medical professional liability reinsurance contract, certain
premiums are ceded to other insurance companies. The reinsurance contract provides coverage for losses in excess of
API�s retention of $250,000 on individual claims and beginning in 2002, $350,000 on multiple insured claims related
to a single occurrence. The 2006 reinsurance contract provides for these same terms with API retaining 10% of the
risk above the aforementioned $250,000 and $350,000 retention levels. The 2007 reinsurance contract provides for the
same terms with API retaining 20% of the risk above the $250,000 and $350,000 retention levels. The reinsurance
contracts for 2002 through 2007 contain variable premium ceding rates based on loss experience and thus, a portion of
policyholder premium ceded to the reinsurers is calculated on a retrospective basis. The variable premium contracts
are subject to a minimum and a maximum premium range to be paid to the reinsurers, depending on the extent of
losses actually paid by the reinsurers. A provisional premium is paid during the initial policy year. The actual
percentage rate ultimately ceded under these contracts will depend upon the development of ultimate losses ceded to
the reinsurers under their retrospective treaties.

To the extent that estimates for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses change, the amount of variable reinsurance
premiums may also change. The ceded premium estimates are based upon management�s estimates of ultimate losses
and loss adjustment expenses and the portion of those losses and loss adjustment expenses that are allocable to
reinsurers under the terms of the related reinsurance contracts. Given the uncertainty of the ultimate amounts of losses
and loss adjustment expenses, these estimates may vary significantly from the ultimate outcome. In addition to the
in-depth review of reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, periodically, API also has its outside
consulting actuary review development in the reinsurance layer or excess of $250,000 retention for each open variable
premium treaty year. Management reviews these estimates and any adjustments necessary are reflected in the period
in which the change in estimate is determined. Adjustment to the premiums ceded could have a material effect on
API�s results of operations for the period in which the change is made.
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Reinsurance Recoverables.  Ceded reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses are recorded as reinsurance
recoverables. Reinsurance recoverables are the estimated amount of future loss payments that will be recovered from
reinsurers, and represent the portion of losses incurred during the period that are estimated to be allocable to
reinsurers. There are several factors that can directly affect the ability to accurately forecast the reinsurance
recoverables. Many of the factors discussed above related to the sensitivities of forecasting total loss and loss
adjustment expense reserves also apply when analyzing reinsurance recoverables. Since API cedes excess losses
above $250,000 on individual claims and $350,000 on multiple insured claims, the trends related to severity
significantly affect this estimate. Current individual claims severity can be above or fall below API�s retention level
over the period it takes to resolve a claim. Furthermore, tort reform in Texas has been in effect since the latter part of
2003 and has lowered claim counts but the trends of severity payouts are only beginning to emerge.

Similar to the estimate for reserves, due to the long-tailed nature of the medical professional liability line of insurance,
relatively small changes in the actuarial assumptions for trends, inflation, severity, frequency for projected ultimate
loss and loss adjustment expense reserves can have a greater impact on the recorded balance for reinsurance
recoverables than with most other property and casualty insurance lines. While we believe that our estimate for
ultimate projected losses related to loss and loss adjustment expense is adequate based on reported and open claim
counts, there can be no assurance that additional significant reserve enhancements will not be necessary in the future
given the many variables inherent in such estimates and the extended period of time that it can take for claim patterns
to emerge.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve API from its obligations to policyholders. We continually monitor our reinsurers
to minimize our exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. Any amount found to be uncollectible is
written off in the period in which the uncollectible amount is identified. We also require letters of credit from any
reinsurance company that does not meet certain regulatory requirements, and/or credit ratings. As of June 30, 2007, all
of our reinsurance contracts were with companies in strong financial condition, and management believes there is not
a need to establish an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance recoverable. We have not experienced any material
problems collecting from our reinsurers.

Stock-Based Compensation. In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision (�SFAS No. 123(R)�) to SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (�SFAS No. 123�), and we were required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the
first quarter of 2006.  SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees (APB No. 25), and related Interpretations, and requires that all stock-based compensation,
including options, be expensed at fair value, as of the grant date, over the vesting period.  Companies are required to
use an option pricing model (e.g.: Black-Scholes or Binomial) to determine compensation expense, consistent with the
model previously used in the already required disclosures of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosure. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) has not had a material effect on the
Company�s financial position, operations or cash flow.

At June 30, 2007, we have several stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully in Notes 12 and
13 to the audited consolidated financial statements contained in our most recently filed Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB No.
25, under which stock-based employee compensation cost was not reflected in net income, as all options granted
under these plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
 In accordance with SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, we provided footnote disclosure of the pro forma
stock-based compensation cost, net loss and net loss per share as if the fair-value based method of expense recognition
and measurement prescribed by SFAS No. 123 had been applied to all employee options.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs.    The costs of acquiring and renewing insurance business that vary with and are
directly related to the production of such business are deferred and amortized ratably over the period the related
unearned premiums and maintenance fees are earned. Such costs include commissions, premium taxes and certain
underwriting and policy issuance costs. Deferred acquisition costs are recorded net of ceding commissions. Deferred
policy acquisition costs are reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future income, including investment
income. If such costs are estimated to be unrecoverable, they are expensed in the period the determination is made.

Income Taxes. We compute income taxes utilizing the asset and liability method. We recognize current and deferred
income tax expense, which is comprised of estimated provisions for federal income taxes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis and operating loss and tax
credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if it is more likely than not that all or
some portion of the benefits related to the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We have not established a valuation
allowance because we believe it is more likely than not our deferred tax assets will be fully recovered.  In July 2006,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which we adopted on January 1, 2007. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for income tax uncertainties. The company has developed and implemented a process based
on the guidelines of FIN 48 to ensure that uncertain tax positions are identified, analyzed and properly reported in the
company�s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109. Based on all known facts and circumstances and current
tax law, we believe that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, and June 30, 2007, is not
material to its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. We also believe that the total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, and June 30, 2007, if recognized, would not have a material effect on its
effective tax rate. We further believe that there are no tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease over the next 12 months producing, individually or in
the aggregate, a material effect on the company�s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

With the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007, our long-term consolidated revenue and earnings will be predominately
derived from medical professional liability insurance provided through our Insurance Services segment. Prior to April
1, 2007, the historical results of operations of our Insurance Services segment were determined by the management
fees we received from API pursuant to a management agreement and the expenses incurred in managing API�s
operations such as personnel expenses, rent, office expenses and technology costs. The management agreement
obligated API to pay management fees to us based on API�s earned premiums before payment of reinsurance
premiums. The management fee percentage was 13.5% of API�s earned premiums. In addition, any pre-tax profits of
API were shared equally with us (profit sharing) so long as the total amount of profit sharing did not exceed 3% of
earned premiums. When we acquired API, our management agreement with API was terminated and our consolidated
results of operations are no longer affected by management fees from API; but, rather our results of operations are
now directly affected by premiums API earns from the sale of medical professional liability insurance, investment
income earned on assets held by API, insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses relating to the insurance policies
API writes as well as commissions and other insurance underwriting and policy acquisition expenses API incurs.
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The following table sets forth selected historical financial and operating data for the Company. The results of
operations for the six months ended June 30, 2007 refer to the historical financial and operating results of the
Company prior to and subsequent to the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. The three months ended June 30, 2007
includes only the historical financial and operating results of the Company subsequent to the acquisition of API on
April 1, 2007.  For comparative purposes, we have also included on a pro forma basis the results of operations for the
three months ended and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 of the Company and API as if the acquisition had
occurred on January 1, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Any reference in the MD&A Section below to �on a pro forma
basis� is as if the Company acquired API on January 1, 2007 and 2006, respectively.  

The income statement data below for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, is derived from
our consolidated unaudited financial statements which management believes incorporate all of the adjustments
necessary for the fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for such periods. All information
is presented in accordance with GAAP, but may not be comparable as data stated for periods 2006 and later were
impacted by the implementation of SFAS No. 123(R). Actual financial results through June 30, 2007 may not be
indicative of future financial performance. Equity compensation of approximately $1,200,000 related to our
acquisition of API is included in the six-month period ended June 30, 2007.

Three Months
Ended
June 30,

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Actual Actual
Pro
forma

Pro
forma Actual Actual

Pro
forma

Pro
forma

Income
Statement Data: (in thousands)
Gross premiums
and maintenance
fees written
-direct and
assumed $ 15,045 $ - $ 15,045 $ 17,324 $ 15,045 $ - $ 30,511 $ 37,439 
Premiums ceded 3,418 - 3,418 522 3,418 - 1,011 (2,255)
Change in
unearned
premiums and
maintenance fees 1,983 - 1,983 1,845 1,983 - 5,235 2,138 

Net premiums and
maintenance fees
earned 20,446 - 20,446 19,691 20,446 - 36,757 37,322 
Investment
income, net of
investment
expenses 2,506 223 2,506 1,842 2,839 419 4,666 3,548 

(49) 12 (49) 34 (464) 20 (257) 143 

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

63



Realized capital
gains (losses) - net
Management
services 36 3,175 36 - 3,695 6,830 36 - 
Financial services 6,972 4,763 6,972 4,662 12,189 8,335 11,882 8,119 
Other revenue 16 41 16 88 34 53 49 189 
Total revenues 29,927 8,214 29,927 26,317 38,739 15,657 53,133 49,321 
Losses and loss
adjustment
expenses 3,162 - 3,162 6,572 3,162 - 14,126 18,222 
Other
underwriting
expenses 2,434 - 2,434 2,241 2,434 - 5,791 4,880 
Change in
deferred policy
acquisition costs 157 - 157 109 157 - 298 71 
Management
services expenses - 2,647 - - 3,823 5,401 - - 
Financial services
expenses 6,330 4,160 6,330 4,158 10,692 7,445 10,767 7,443 
General and
administrative
expenses 1,421 479 1,421 1,724 2,192 998 2,326 2,133 
Loss from
impairment of
goodwill 1,247 - 1,247 1,247 1,247 - 1,247 1,247 
Total expenses 14,751 7,286 14,751 16,051 23,707 13,844 34,555 33,996 
Income from
operations 15,176 928 15,176 10,266 15,032 1,813 18,578 15,325 
Income tax
expense 5,368 329 5,368 3,708 5,319 651 6,511 5,224 
Minority interests 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 
Net income
before
extraordinary
gain 9,807 598 9,807 6,557 9,712 1,160 12,065 10,099 
Extraordinary
gain, net of taxes 2,264 - 2,264 - 2,264 - 2,264 - 
Net income $ 12,071 $ 598 $ 12,071 $ 6,557 $ 11,976 $ 1,160 $ 14,329 $ 10,099 
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As of

June
30,2007

As of

December 31, 2006
Historical Historical Pro forma

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash
equivalents and
investments $ 223,193 $ 27,161 $ 172,215 
Premiums and
maintenance fees
receivable 16,270 - 16,493 
Reinsurance
recoverables 25,854 - 28,491 
All other assets 18,060 9,115 22,006 
Total Assets 283,377 36,276 239,205 
Reserve for losses and
loss adjustment
expenses 109,816 - 110,089 
Unearned premiums
and maintenance fees 34,562 - 39,786 
All other liabilities 35,547 6,687 25,562 
Total Liabilities 179,925 6,687 175,437 
Minority interest 22 21 21 
Total Shareholders'
Equity $ 103,430 $ 29,568 $ 63,747 

The discussion that follows should be read in connection with the unaudited Condensed Financials Statements and
Notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. For additional information regarding the pro forma results of
operations of the Company and API had the transaction occurred on January 1, 2007 and 2006, respectively, please
see Note 3 to the Unaudited Financial Statements.

Revenues increased $21,713,000 (264%) to $29,927,000 from $8,214,000 and $23,082,000 (147%) to $38,739,000
from $15,657,000 for the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same
periods in 2006. Our income from operations increased $14,248,000 (1,535%) to $15,176,000 from $928,000 and
$13,219,000 (729%) to $15,032,000 from $1,813,000 in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. Our net income increased $11,473,000 (1,919%) to $12,071,000
from $598,000 and $10,816,000 (932%) to $11,976,000 from $1,160,000 in the three and six month periods ended
June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. Lastly, our diluted net income per share increased
$2.16 (1,029%) to $2.37 from $0.21 and $2.57 (643%) to $2.97 from 0.40 in the three and six month periods ended
June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. The reasons for these changes are described
below.
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Gross premiums and maintenance fees written. Gross premiums and maintenance fees written increased to
$15,045,000 from $0 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the same periods
in 2006 as a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007.  On a pro forma basis, gross premiums and maintenance
fees written decreased $2,279,000 (13%) to $15,045,000 from $17,324,000 and $6,928,000 (19%) to $30,511,000
from $37,439,000 for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same
periods in 2006.  While API increased in the number of policyholders to 4,802 at June 30, 2007 from 4,340 at June 30,
2006, gross premiums and maintenance fees written decreased due to rate decreases which averaged 17% and 17% for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2007.
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Premiums Ceded. Premiums ceded decreased to $3,418,000 from $0 for the three and six months ended June 30,
2007, as compared to the same periods in 2006 as a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. On a pro forma
basis, premiums ceded expenses decreased $2,896,000 (555%) to $3,418,000 from $522,000 and $3,266,000 to
$1,011,000 from ($2,255,000) for the three and six months ending June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the
same periods in 2006. The reinsurance contracts beginning in 2002 through 2007 are variable premium treaties that
have various minimum and maximum rates. The actual premium rate will depend upon the ultimate losses ceded to
the reinsurer under the related treaty. The Company, supported by outside consulting actuarial reviews, continually
monitors the development of claims subject to reinsurance and adjusts premiums ceded for estimated profit sharing
provisions based on claims development in the reinsurance layers. The decrease in premiums ceded of $2,896,000 and
$3,266,000 for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2007, as compared to the same period in 2006, is
primarily the result of lower estimated ceding rates due to lower estimated loss and loss adjustment expenses for prior
treaty years 2002 through 2006. This prior year favorable development in the reinsurance layer resulted in us
recognizing $5,636,000 as a reduction to ceded premiums in the second quarter of 2007 as compared to $4,310,000 of
prior year favorable development in the second quarter of 2006. Additionally, API increased its participation in the
excess loss treaty from 10% in 2006 to 20% of any claim in excess of $250,000 on individual claims and $350,000 on
multiple insured claims in 2007, which resulted in a lower cost of reinsurance than in 2006. API increased its retention
in 2006 and 2007 based on decreases in claims experience since the passage of tort reform legislation in 2003.

Net Premiums and Maintenance Fees Earned.  Net premiums and maintenance fees earned increased by $20,446,000
from $0 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same periods in 2006 as a result of the
acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. On a pro forma basis, net premiums and maintenance fees earned increased by
$755,000 (4%) to $20,446,000 from $19,691,000 and decreased by $565,000 (2%) to $36,757,000 from $37,322,000
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same periods in 2006. The increase for the three
months ending June 30, 2007 as compared to the same comparable period in 2006 was due to favorable development
of $5,636,000 on the 2002-2006 variable premium reinsurance treaties offset by average rate decreases of 17% for the
three months ended June 30, 2007. The decrease for the six months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same
comparable period in 2006 was due to average rate decreases of 17% offset by the favorable development of
$5,636,000 on the 2002-2006 variable premium treaties discussed in the preceding paragraph.

Investment Income.  Investment income, net of investment expenses increased by $2,283,000 (1024%) to $2,506,000
from $223,000 and $2,420,000 (578%) to $2,839,000 from $419,000 for the three and six months ended June 30,
2007, respectively, as compared to the same periods in 2006 as a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. On
a pro forma basis, investment income, net of investment expenses, increased by $664,000 (36%) to $2,506,000 from
$1,842,000 and $1,118,000 (32%) to $4,666,000 from $3,548,000 and  for the three and six months ended June 30,
2007 as compared to the same comparable periods for 2006. Invested assets for insurance services segment increased
by $41,445,000 (36%) to $157,680,000 at June 30, 2007 from $116,235,000 at June 30, 2006 resulting in the increase
in investment income. The increase in invested assets resulted primarily from our secondary common stock offering as
well as from positive net cash flow from operating activities.

Realized Capital Gains (Loss). Realized capital gains (loss) decreased by $61,000 to ($49,000) from $12,000 and
$484,000 to ($464,000) from $20,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to
same periods in 2006. The decrease of $61,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same
period in 2006 is due to other than temporary impairment charges of $231,000 resulting from fair market value
declines in our investment in Financial Industries Corporation (�FIC�) common stock offset by net realized gains in
quarter ended June 30, 2007 of $182,000. For the quarter ended June 30, 2006 there were no impairment charges for
our FIC investment and net realized capital gains totaled only $13,000.
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The decrease of $484,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same period in 2006, is due to
other than temporary impairment charges of $655,000 resulting from fair market declines in our investment in FIC
offset by net realized gains of $270,000 for the six months ended. For six months ended June 30, 2006, there were no
impairment charges for our FIC investment and net realized capital gains totaled only $13,000.

Management Services Revenue. Prior to the acquisition of API, the historical results of operations of our insurance
services segment were determined by the management fees we received from API pursuant to a management
agreement and the expenses incurred in managing API�s operations.  When we acquired API on April 1, 2007, our
management agreement was terminated and as such is no longer included in our consolidated results of operations.
Management services revenue decreased by $3,139,000 (99%) to $36,000 from $3,175,000 and $3,135,000 (46%) to
$3,695,000 from $6,830,000 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same
periods in 2006. As a result of our acquisition of API, we recorded management fee revenue including the contingent
management fee only through the quarter ended March 31, 2007. However, comparable periods for the three months
and six months ended June 30, 2006 include management fee revenue on an annual basis.

Financial Services Revenues. Our financial services revenue increased by approximately $2,209,000 (46%) to
$6,972,000 from $4,763,000 and $3,854,000 (46%) to $12,189,000 from $8,335,000 in the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same period in 2006. The current year increases were due
to higher commission revenues earned at APS Financial, the broker/dealer division of our financial services segment,
which derives most of its revenue from transactions in the fixed income market, in both investment and
non-investment grade securities. Commission revenues from securities trading increased $1,382,000 (46%) and
$3,395,000 (61%) in the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same period
in 2006. Revenue from investment grade trading continues to be relatively flat in an interest rate environment in which
the Federal Reserve raised rates seventeen times (for a total of 425 basis points) between June 2004 and June 2006,
followed by no change in policy since then. Revenue from trading of non-investment grade securities (high yield
bonds) was generally much more active during the first half of this year compared to the first half of 2006 due to our
customer activity in investments of certain distressed and bankruptcy companies, with our most active sectors of
trading in the airline and energy industries. Also contributing to our increased revenues was the continued growth of
transactions in bank debt and trade claims which were up $790,000 and $1,140,000 for the current year three and six
month periods, respectively.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses.  Loss and loss adjustment expenses increased to $3,162,000 from $0 for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the same periods in 2006, as a result of the
acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. On a pro forma basis, loss and loss adjustment expenses decreased by $3,410,000
(52%) to $3,162,000 from $6,572,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the three months
ended June 30, 2006. For the three months ended June 30, 2007, current accident year loss and loss adjustment
expenses totaled $11,661,000 based on 75 claims reported and prior year losses developed favorably $8,499,000 as a
result of reductions in our estimates of claims severity, principally the 2002 through 2006 report years. For the three
months ended June 30, 2006, current accident year loss and loss adjustment expenses were $8,471,000 based on 183
claims reported and prior year losses developed favorably $1,899,000. For the six months ended June 30, 2007 we
decreased loss and loss adjustment expenses by $4,096,000 (22%) to $14,126,000 from $18,222,000 for the same
comparable period in 2006. Overall reported claims counts decreased by 99 to 187 for the six months ended June 30,
2007, as compared to the same period in 2006 and prior year losses developed favorably by $8,440,000 as a result of
reductions in claims severity as discussed above. The effects of 2003 tort reform in Texas on average claim severity
post-reform are emerging favorably and resulting in improved claim development patterns. Since the passage of
reform, API has favorably settled a number of post-tort reform claims from the 2004 and 2005 report years. Even
though reported claims have decreased for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the same
periods in 2006, we increased our current accident year loss and loss adjustment expenses due to increases in
policyholder count from 4,340 as of June 30, 2006 to 4,802 as of June 30, 2007.
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We continually review and update the data underlying the estimation of the loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
and make adjustments that we believe the emerging data warrant. Any adjustments to reserves that are considered
necessary are reflected in the results of operations in the period the estimates are changed. As of June 30, 2007, we
continue to reserve at the upper end of the reserve range.

Other Underwriting Expenses and Net Change in Deferred Acquisition Costs.  Other underwriting expenses increased
to $2,434,000 from $0 for the three and the six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the same
periods in 2006 as a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007. On a pro forma basis, other underwriting
expenses increased by $193,000 (9%) to $2,434,000 from $2,241,000 and $911,000 (19%) to $5,791,000 from
$4,880,000 for the three months and the six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the same
periods in 2006. Other underwriting expenses consist primarily of commissions to agents, premium taxes and other
general underwriting expenses related to managing our insurance services segment. The increase of $193,000 for the
three months ended June 30, 2007 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2006 is mainly due to an increase
in other general underwriting expenses. The increase of $911,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2007, as
compared to June 30, 2006, is mainly attributable to an expense recognized for the fully-vested stock options awarded
to the former board members of API pursuant to the terms of our acquisition of API, and equity awards to employees
who were instrumental in accomplishing the acquisition. The total cost recognized during the six months ended for
these equity awards amounted to approximately $1,200,000. Net change in deferred acquisition costs increased to
$157,000 from $0 for the three months and the six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively, as compared to the same
periods in 2006 as a result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007.  On a pro forma basis, the net change in deferred
acquisition costs, which is comprised of the change in deferred and amortized commissions paid to agents on new and
renewal business and deferred and amortized premium taxes, increased for three months ending June 30, 2007 by
$48,000 (44%) to $157,000 from $109,000 for the comparable period in 2006 due to the amortization of expenses
exceeding new costs capitalized. Deferred acquisition costs increased for six months ending June 30, 2007, by
$227,000 (320%) to $298,000 from $71,000 for the comparable period in 2006 due to the amortization of expenses
exceeding new costs capitalized.

Management Service Expenses. Prior to the acquisition of API, the historical results of operations of our insurance
services segment were determined by the management fees we received from API pursuant to a management
agreement and the expenses incurred in managing API�s operations.  When we acquired API on April 1, 2007, our
management agreement was terminated and as such is no longer included in the consolidated results of operations of
the Company. Thus, as a result of the merger, insurance management services expenses decreased by $2,647,000
(100%) to $ 0 from $2,647,000 and $1,578,000 (29%) to $3,823,000 from $5,401,000 in the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. Insurance services expenses were
recorded only through the quarter ended March 31, 2007. However, comparable periods for the three months and six
months ended June 30, 2006 include insurance services expenses on an annual basis.  

Financial Services Expenses. Our financial services expenses increased $2,170,000 (52%) to $6,330,000 from
$4,160,000 and $3,247,000 (44%) to $10,692,000 from $7,445,000 in the three and six month periods ended June 30,
2007, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. The primary reason for the current year increase is
a $1,582,000 (60%) and $2,584,000 (56%) increase in commission expense in the current year three and six month
periods, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. This resulted from the increase of commissions paid on
non-investment grade bond and trade claim transactions mentioned above. In addition, incentive compensation costs
rose $425,000 (134%) and $597,000 (162%) in the current three and six months, respectively, as a result of increased
profits and surpassing certain minimum thresholds earlier in the year. Legal expenses were higher by $128,000
(178%) and $149,000 (120%) for the current year three and six months, respectively, due to costs incurred for
litigation concerning certain transactions and for expenses to further our efforts to become compliant with the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $942,000 (197%) to $1,421,000
from $479,000 and $1,194,000 (120%) to $2,192,000 from $998,000 in the three month and six month periods ended
June 30, 2007, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2006. The increase in general and administrative
expenses of $942,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2007 includes higher salaries of $108,000 or 61% resulting
from our hiring a new Chief Operating Officer and new administrative assistant in April of 2007; higher incentive
compensation of $508,000 or 203%, a formula-driven expense that is higher in 2007 due to the large increase in net
earnings; higher board fees of $122,000 or 346% resulting from a greater number of directors and a greater number of
board meetings necessitated by the merger with API and the common stock secondary offering; and higher
professional fees of $66,000 or 758% resulting from internal control expenditures to further our efforts to become
compliant with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The increase in general and administrative expenses of $1,194,000
for the six months ended June 20, 2007 includes all of the above explanations, with greater dollar variances, in
addition to deferred compensation awards of $159,000 in the first quarter of 2007 resulting from completion of the
merger.

Loss from Impairment of Goodwill. Goodwill arose upon the repurchase of an interest in APS Insurance Services from
a minority holder in 2003. Goodwill was determined to exist based on earnings expected to be generated from the
management agreement with API. With our purchase of API and termination of the management agreement the
question of impairment of the goodwill was raised. Upon review, we determined that the original circumstances
creating the goodwill no longer exist and that the entire $1,247,000 balance is impaired and was written down in the
quarter ended June 30, 2007.

Minority Interest. Minority interest represents a 3% interest in Asset Management, a subsidiary within our financial
services segment, owned by key individuals within Asset Management.

Extraordinary Gain. Our extraordinary gain represents the excess of the assets received over the costs to acquire all of
the issued and outstanding stock of API. The business combination is being accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting and, accordingly, the purchase price has been allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on fair values at April 1, 2007, the date of acquisition. The total purchase price was approximately $45,167,000 and
consisted of consideration of 1,982,499 shares of the Company�s common stock, valued at a per share price of $17.635,
or $34,961,000 in aggregate, $35,000 in cash paid in lieu of fractional shares of common stock, 10,197.95 shares of
preferred stock valued at $9,179,000, plus costs to complete the acquisition of $992,000. The net fair value of the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed was $47,431,000. The resulting excess of assets received over costs to
acquire was recorded as an extraordinary gain in accordance with SFAS No. 141, �Accounting for Business
Combinations�

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The primary sources of our liquidity for the six months ended June 30, 2007, are funds provided by insurance
premiums collected, net investment income, recoveries from reinsurers and proceeds from the maturity and sale of
invested assets and principal receipts from our mortgage-backed securities. In addition, a large non-recurring source of
funds in 2007 resulted from our secondary common stock offering of 2,000,000 shares as well as a subsequent
over-allotment sale of 315,000 shares. The primary uses of cash are losses, loss adjustment expenses, operating
expenses, the acquisition of invested assets and fixed assets, reinsurance premiums and federal income taxes.
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Cash Flows. Our total cash and cash equivalents balance at June 30, 2007, was $22,175,000, an increase of
$17,933,000  (423%) in the current year as cash provided by operating and financing activities more than offset net
cash used in investing activities. Our cash flows provided from operating activities totaled $11,570,000 for the current
year on the strength of net income before extraordinary gains of $9,712,000. Our insurance segment generated the
bulk of the cash received from operating activities, the result of increased premium and maintenance fee receipts and
decreased claims payouts. Cash provided by financing activities contributed $27,427,000 for the six months ended
June 30, 2007 as a result of cash received from our secondary offering of common stock totaling approximately
$30,237,000. Partially offsetting this was a dividend paid to our common stock shareholders ($1,416,000) and a partial
redemption of our preferred stock ($1,018,000). Our cash flows used in investing activities totaled $21,064,000 in
2007 primarily as a result of purchases of available-for-sale fixed income securities in excess of proceeds from their
sale. Partially offsetting this use of cash from investing activities was cash totaling $9,910,000 received as part of the
assets acquired from our acquisition of API. For details of the amounts described above, refer to the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows on page 7 of this Form 10-Q.

Historically, we have maintained a strong working capital position and, as a result, we have been able to satisfy our
operational and capital expenditure requirements with cash generated from our operating and investing activities.
These same sources of funds have also allowed us to pursue investment and expansion opportunities consistent with
our growth plans. Although there can be no assurance our operating activities will provide positive cash flow in 2006,
we are optimistic that our working capital requirements will be met for the foreseeable future for the following
reasons: (1) our current cash position is very strong, with a balance of approximately $22,000,000; (2) a large portion
of our approximate $200,000,000 investment portfolio is in short-term, highly liquid bonds and other fixed income
securities, and (3) we renewed a line of credit in April 2007 that is described below.

Line of Credit. We renewed a $3,000,000 line of credit that was originally established in November 2003 with
PlainsCapital Bank. The loan calls for interest payments only to be made on any amount drawn until April 15, 2008,
when the entire amount of the note, principal and interest then remaining unpaid, becomes due and payable. At June
30, 2007, there had never been any advances taken against this revolving promissory note.  We are in compliance with
the covenants of the loan agreement, including requirements for a minimum of $5,000,000 of unencumbered liquidity
and a minimum 2 to 1 net worth ratio.

Capital Expenditures. In April 2007 we entered into a contract with a vendor to provide us with, and assist in the
implementation of an integrated policy and claims administration system. The total cash flow for the project is
anticipated to be approximately $2,100,000 over the next 15 to 18 months.  Our capital expenditures for equipment
were $484,000 in the first six months of 2007 of which approximately $390,000 were expenditures related to the
initial phase of this software implementation project. We expect capital expenditures for the remainder of 2007 to be
approximately $650,000 for this system upgrade project and are expected to be funded through cash on hand.

Restrictions on Dividends by API. In addition to restrictions on dividends and distributions applicable to all Texas
stock insurance companies, for so long as any Series A redeemable preferred stock is outstanding, the Texas
Department of Insurance prohibits API from paying dividends to us in any fiscal year unless and until we have
complied with our redemption and dividend payment obligations to the holders of our Series A redeemable preferred
stock for that year. We have also agreed that, without prior approval of the Texas Department of Insurance, aggregate
annual distributions to us in respect of API�s capital stock may not exceed the lesser of 10% of API�s prior year-end
policyholder statutory earned surplus or API�s prior year net income, and in no event may exceed API�s statutory
earned surplus.

Escrow Account. In connection with the API acquisition, the Texas Department of Insurance has required us to place
$2,500,000 into an escrow account with a bank, to remain in escrow until the aggregate remaining redemption and
dividend obligation relating to our Series A redeemable preferred stock is less than the amount of the escrow balance.
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Insurance.
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ADOPTION OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments, an amendment of FASB Statement Nos. 133
and 140. SFAS No. 155 becomes effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an
entity�s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. This Statement permits fair value remeasurement for any
hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation; clarifies
which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of Statement No. 133;
establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding
derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation; clarifies
that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives; and amends Statement
140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative financial instrument
that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. We do not expect the adoption
of this standard to have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes�an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which we adopted on January 1,
2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income tax uncertainties. The company has developed and implemented a
process based on the guidelines of FIN 48 to ensure that uncertain tax positions are identified, analyzed and properly
reported in the company�s financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109. Based on all known facts and
circumstances and current tax law, we believe that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, and
June 30, 2007 is not material to its results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. We also believe that the
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, and June 30, 2007, if recognized, would not have a material
effect on its effective tax rate. We further believe that there are no tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that
the unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease over the next 12 months producing, individually
or in the aggregate, a material effect on the company�s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards, or SFAS No. 157, �Accounting for Fair Value Measurements�, effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. This Statement defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. Accordingly, this
Statement does not require any new fair value measurements. However, for some entities, the application of this
Statement will change current practice. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February, 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 159, �Accounting for the Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities� an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 115. This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently
without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.  We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have
a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are principally exposed to three types of market risk related to our investment operations, including credit risk,
interest rate risk, and equity price risk. The term market risk refers to the risk of a loss arising from adverse changes in
market rates and prices such as interest rates, credit risk, equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates.
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We invest our assets primarily in fixed-maturity securities, which as of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006
comprised approximately 94% and 79% of total investments at market value. As of June 30, 2007 and December 31,
2006, the fair value of investments in fixed maturity securities was $188,906,000 and $16,636,000. The significant
increase in fixed-income maturities is the result of the acquisition of API on April 1, 2007.

The fixed-income maturities consist predominately of investment grade U.S. government agency and non-agency
collateralized mortgage obligations and U.S. government agency mortgage-backed bonds for the purpose of
generating ample cash flow to meet claim funding requirements while maintaining a reasonable investment yield.  

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed-income securities. We control this exposure by
emphasizing investment grade quality in the fixed-income securities we purchase. At June 30, 2007 and at
December 31, 2006, 100% of our fixed-income portfolio consisted of investment grade securities. We believe that this
concentration of investment grade securities limits our exposure to credit risk on its fixed-income investments.

The value of the fixed-income maturities are also subject to interest rate risk. As market interest rates decrease, the
value portfolio increases with the opposite holding true in rising interest rate environments. All of our fixed income
securities are designated as available-for-sale and, accordingly, are presented at fair value on our balance sheets. Fixed
rate securities may have their fair market value adversely affected due to a rise in interest rates, and we may suffer
losses in principal if forced to sell securities that have declined in market value due to changes in interest rates. We
believe we are in a position to keep our fixed-income investments until maturity since we do not invest in fixed
maturity securities for trading purposes.

Equity securities comprised approximately 5% and 20% of total investments at market value as of June 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively. As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the fair value of investments in equity
securities was $9,731,000 and $4,403,000, respectively.

Equity securities are subject to equity price risk, which is defined as the potential for loss in market value due to a
decline in equity prices. The value of common stock equity investments is dependent upon the general conditions in
the securities markets and the business and financial performance of the individual companies in the portfolio. Values
are typically based on future economic prospects as perceived by investors in the equity markets. We regularly review
the carrying value of our investments and identify and record losses when events and circumstances indicate that such
declines in the fair value of such assets below our accounting basis are other-than-temporary. An additional
impairment charge was taken in the current quarter on our investment in Financial Industries Corporation (�FIC�)
having previously resolved that declines in FIC�s stock price will be considered to be �other than temporary� as defined
in Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities, as amended. Our policy in regards to our investment in FIC is that we will record pretax charges to
earnings should the common stock price on the last day of each interim or annual period fall below the adjusted cost
basis of our investment in FIC. During the three months ended June 30, 2007, that charge totaled $231,000, bringing
the total amount written off in 2007 to $655,000. As a consequence of these write-downs, our basis in this stock has
declined to $5.90 per share which equals the fair market value of FIC common stock at June 30, 2007. While we
continue to have the ability and the intent to hold the stock indefinitely, we concluded that the additional uncertainty
created by FIC�s late SEC filings, together with its continued de-listing from any national stock exchanges, dictated
that the current quarter decline should be viewed as other than temporary. We will continue to monitor and evaluate
the situation at FIC.

The remainder of the investment portfolio consists of cash and highly liquid short-term investments.
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As mentioned above, our invested assets are subject to interest rate risk and equity risk. The following table presents
the effect as of June 30, 2007 on current estimated fair values of the fixed-maturity securities available-for-sale and
equity securities assuming a 100-basis point (1%) increase in market interest rates and a 10% decline in equity prices.

Carrying Value

Estimated Fair
Value at Current

Market
Rates/Prices

Estimated Fair
Value at Adjusted

Market
Rates/Prices (1)

(in thousands)
Interest rate risk:
Fixed-maturities; available for sale $ 188,906 $ 188,906 $ 176,794 
Equity price risk:
Equity securities 9,731 9,731 8,758 
(1)

Adjusted rates assume a 100 basis point (1%) increase in market rates for fixed rate securities and a 10% decline in
equity market values.

For all our financial assets and liabilities, we seek to maintain reasonable average durations, consistent with the
maximization of income, without sacrificing investment quality and providing for liquidity and diversification.

The estimated fair values at current market rates for financial instruments subject to interest rate risk and equity risk in
the table above are the same as those included elsewhere herein. The estimated fair values are calculated using
simulation modeling based on the most likely outcome, assuming a 100-basis point shift in interest rates.

This sensitivity analysis provides only a limited, point-in-time view of the market risk sensitivity of certain of our
financial instruments. The actual impact of market interest rate and price changes on the financial instruments may
differ significantly from those shown in the sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis is further limited, as it does
not consider any actions that we could take in response to actual and/or anticipated changes in interest rates and equity
prices.

We are also subject to credit risk with respect to our reinsurers. Although our reinsurers are liable to us to the extent
we cede risk to them, we are ultimately liable to our policyholders on all risks we have reinsured. As a result,
reinsurance agreements do not limit our ultimate obligations to pay claims to policyholders and we may not recover
claims made to our reinsurers.

Additionally, our revenues generated through commissions at our financial services segment also expose us to market
risk. Changes in interest rates could have an impact at our broker/dealer subsidiary, APS Financial. The general level
of interest rates may trend higher or lower in 2007, and this move may impact our level of business in different
fixed-income sectors. If a generally improving economy is the impetus behind higher rates, then while our investment
grade business may drop off, our high yield business might improve with improving credit conditions. A volatile
interest rate environment in 2007 could also impact our business as this type of market condition can lead to investor
uncertainty and their corresponding willingness to commit funds.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurances of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily is
required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. As of the
end of the period covered by this report, and under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of these disclosure procedures. Based on this evaluation and subject to the foregoing, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in reaching a
reasonable level of assurance of achieving management�s desired controls and procedures objectives.

There have been no changes in internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

As part of a continuing effort to improve our business processes we are evaluating our internal controls and may
update certain controls to accommodate any modifications to our business processes or accounting procedures.
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PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various claims and legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of business. Management
believes that any liabilities arising from these actions will not have a significant adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS

Our geographic concentration means that our insurance business performance may be affected by economic,
regulatory and demographic conditions of our operations within the State of Texas.

Our insurance business is concentrated in Texas, in which we generated 99% of our premiums written for the three
months ended June 30, 2007.  Accordingly, unfavorable economic, regulatory and demographic conditions in Texas
would negatively impact our business. Our insurance services business is focused exclusively on medical professional
liability insurance. In the event there is meaningful change in the existing legislation and claims environment, our
financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. We may be exposed to greater risks than
those faced by insurance companies that conduct business over a larger geographic area. For example, our geographic
concentration could subject us to pricing pressure as a result of market or regulatory forces.

Our Insurance Services subsidiaries operate in highly competitive businesses against competitors with greater
financial, marketing, technological and other resources.

The insurance industry is highly competitive. Many of our competitors possess greater financial, marketing,
technological and other resources. We may not be able to continue to compete successfully.

All of our revenue from the Insurance Services segment is attributable to API. API competes with several insurance
carriers, including Medical Protective Insurance Services Inc., Texas Medical Liability Trust (�TMLT�), ProAssurance
Corporation, The Doctors Company, Advocate MD RPG, Inc., and the Texas Medical Liability Insurance
Underwriting Association, which is the state-sponsored insurer of last resort. We consider these companies API�s
competitors because they are the companies to which policyholders who cancel their policies with API typically
move. Many of our competitors have greater financial strength and broader resources than us. We compete with these
companies on a variety of factors including price, customer service, expertise in claims handling, policy coverage, risk
management services and financial strength. In premiums written and asset size, Medical Protective Insurance
Services Inc., TMLT, ProAssurance Corporation and The Doctors Company are significantly larger than API, and
Advocate MD RPG, Inc. is smaller than API. Texas Medical Liability Insurance Underwriting Association is larger
than API in terms of asset size and smaller than API in terms of annualized earned premiums. We do not have the
capacity to write the volume of business equal to that of some of the other major carriers. With the implementation of
tort reform in late 2003, additional companies have re-entered, and other national companies may re-enter the Texas
market, resulting in further increases in competition. As a result of this increased competition, API continues to face
price pressure on both existing renewals and new business.

Our largest insurance competitor, TMLT was established under the provisions of a statute that authorized a statewide
association of physicians or dentists to create a trust to self-insure its members. By statute, only members of the
founding association may obtain insurance from TMLT. TMLT is subject to limited government regulation in
comparison to other insurance companies, such as API, in regards to statutory financial reporting and financial
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examinations by the Texas Department of Insurance. TMLT further benefits from a low-cost structure as it is not
required to pay premium taxes and does not participate in the guaranty association. As a result, we are at a competitive
disadvantage in competing against TMLT.
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Our reliance on key executives could affect our results of operations.

We believe that our success depends on the efforts and abilities of a relatively small group of our executive personnel.
The loss of services of one or more of these key executives could have a material adverse effect on our business. We
do not maintain key man life insurance on any of our key executives. We have identified our key executives as:
Kenneth S. Shifrin, chairman of the board and chief executive officer; Timothy LaFrey, president and chief operating
officer; George Conwill, president of APS Investment Services; Maury Magids, president of APS Insurance Services,
Inc.; and William Hayes, chief financial officer. In 2000, Mr. Shifrin was diagnosed with chronic lymphocytic
leukemia. The treatments Mr. Shifrin is taking for this condition in 2007 may have an impact on the amount of time he
will be able to devote to our business and that worsening of the effects of this condition could further reduce our
access to Mr. Shifrin�s services, which could adversely affect our business.

If we do not effectively price our insurance policies, then our financial results will be adversely affected.

Our premium rates are established when coverage is initiated and based on factors that include estimates of expected
losses generated from the policies we underwrite. We analyze many factors when pricing a policy, including the
policyholder�s prior loss history, medical specialty and practicing territory. If we under price our insurance policies,
actual costs for providing insurance coverage to policyholders may be significantly higher than associated premiums.
When initiating coverage on a policyholder, we must rely on information provided by the policyholder or previous
carriers to properly estimate future claims exposure. If any information is inaccurate, we could under price our
policies by using claims estimates that are too low. As a result, actual costs for providing insurance coverage to
policyholders may be significantly higher than associated premiums. We assume the risk that policies in force were
written at inadequate premium rates.

If our relationships with certain of our independent agencies, one of which accounts for a significant part of our
business, were terminated, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We market and sell our insurance products through a group of approximately 22 active independent, non-exclusive
insurance agents. In addition, for the three months ended June 30, 2007, approximately 45% of our gross premiums
written were produced by one agency. This agency also serves as API�s primary reinsurance broker.

We do not have exclusive arrangements with our agents, and either party can terminate the relationship at any time.
These agents are not obligated to promote our products and also sell our competitors� products. We must offer medical
professional liability insurance products and services that meet the requirements of these agents and their customers.
We must also provide competitive commissions to these agents.

Thus, our relationships with our distribution partners may not continue or may continue under terms that are not as
favorable to us as our current agreements. Also, if we do not maintain good relationships with the agents with whom
we contract to sell our products, these agents may sell our competitors� products instead of ours or may direct less
desirable risks to us, and our revenues or profitability may decline. In addition, these agents may find it easier to
promote the broader range of programs of some of our competitors than to promote our single-line medical
professional liability insurance products. The loss of a number of our independent agents or the failure of these agents
to successfully market our products could result in lower gross premiums written and have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition and results of operations if we are unable to replace them with agents that produce
comparable premiums.
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Loss reserves in our insurance services business are based on estimates and may be inadequate to cover actual loss
and loss adjustment expenses.

As a risk-bearing insurance entity, we must establish and maintain reserves for our estimated liability for losses and
loss adjustment expenses in our Insurance Services business. We establish loss reserves in our financial statements
that represent an estimate of amounts needed to pay and administer claims with respect to insured events that have
occurred, including events that have not yet been reported to us. Loss reserves are estimates of the ultimate cost of
individual claims based on actuarial estimation techniques and are inherently uncertain. Judgment is required in
applying actuarial techniques to determine the relevance of historical payment and claim closure patterns under
current facts and circumstances. We periodically review our established reserves and may adjust reserves based on the
results of these reviews. If we change our estimates, these changes are reflected in results of operations during the
period in which they are made. These adjustments could be significant.

As a holding company, our financial condition and results of operations are dependent on our subsidiaries and our
ability to pay expenses and dividends will be dependent on our ability to receive dividends from our subsidiaries,
which may be restricted.

We are principally a holding company with assets consisting primarily of cash, investment securities and the capital
stock of our subsidiaries. Consequently, our ability to pay our operating expenses, make redemption payments on our
Series A redeemable preferred stock and service our other indebtedness is dependent upon the earnings of our
subsidiaries and our ability to receive funds from such subsidiaries through loans, dividends or otherwise. Our
subsidiaries are legally distinct entities and have no obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make funds available to us
for such obligations. In addition, our subsidiaries� ability to make such payments is subject to applicable state laws and
claims of our subsidiaries� creditors will generally have priority as to the assets of such subsidiaries. Accordingly, our
subsidiaries may not be able to pay funds to us sufficient to enable us to meet our obligations. The ability of API to
pay dividends to us or redeem any of the API preferred stock that we hold is subject to regulation by the Texas
Department of Insurance. In addition to restrictions on dividends and distributions applicable to all Texas stock
insurance companies, for so long as any of our Series A redeemable preferred stock is outstanding, the Texas
Department of Insurance prohibits API from paying dividends to us on the API common stock that we hold in any
fiscal year unless and until we comply with our redemption and dividend payment obligation to the holders of our
Series A redeemable preferred stock for that year. We have also agreed that, without prior approval of the Texas
Department of Insurance, aggregate annual dividends on API common stock and payments made to redeem API
preferred stock held by us may not exceed the lesser of 10% of API�s prior year-end policyholder statutory earned
surplus or API�s prior year net income, and in no event may exceed API�s policyholder statutory earned surplus. By
way of illustration, if this dividend and redemption restriction had been in place in 2004, 2005 and 2006, possible
dividends paid by API to us for those years would have been limited to $357,268, $870,465 and $1,555,400,
respectively. Accordingly, our subsidiaries may not be able to pay funds to us and, even if paid such funds may not be
sufficient to enable us to meet our obligations.

If tort reform is successfully challenged, it could materially affect our insurance operations.

Tort reforms generally restrict the ability of a plaintiff to recover damages by imposing one or more limitations,
including, among other limitations, eliminating certain claims that may be heard in a court, limiting the amount or
types of damages, changing statutes of limitation or the period of time to make a claim and/or limiting venue or court
selection. Texas enacted legislation in 2003 specifically directed at medical professional liability reform. Among the
more significant aspects of the legislation were caps on non-economic damages and caps on non-economic damages
against a single institution and against all healthcare institutions combined.
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While the effects of tort reform may be generally beneficial to our insurance business, such reforms may not be
effective or ultimately upheld by the courts. In the event that we begin experiencing an increase in claims frequency
and/or severity, we will have to respond with corresponding increases to premium rate levels. These changes in rates
may prevent us from having the ability to expand our Insurance Services business in the Texas marketplace. In
addition, the benefits of tort reform may be accompanied by regulatory actions by state insurance authorities that may
be detrimental to our insurance business, such as expanded coverage requirements and premium rate limitations or
rollbacks.

45

Edgar Filing: AMERICAN PHYSICIANS SERVICE GROUP INC - Form 10-Q

90



Prior-year favorable experiences on our variable premium reinsurance contracts may not continue to result in
favorable adjustments to ceded premiums.

Our reinsurance contracts for 2002 through 2007 contain variable premium ceding rates based on loss experience and
thus, a portion of policyholder premium ceded to the reinsurers is calculated on a retrospective basis. The variable
premium contract is subject to a minimum and a maximum premium range to be paid to the reinsurers, depending on
the extent of losses actually paid by the reinsurers. A provisional premium is paid during the initial policy year. The
actual percentage rate ultimately ceded under these contracts will depend upon the development of ultimate losses
ceded to the reinsurers under their retrospective treaties.

For the three months ended June 30, 2007, API recorded favorable net development to ceded premiums of $5,636,000
related to prior variable premium reinsurance contracts as a result of lower estimated loss and loss adjustment
expenses for various open treaty years. Prior-year favorable experiences on our variable premium reinsurance
contracts may not continue to result in favorable adjustments to ceded premiums.

Our Financial services subsidiaries operate in highly competitive businesses against competitors with greater
financial, marketing, technological and other resources.

Our financial services businesses are engaged in a highly competitive industry. We compete with numerous other
broker-dealers, many of which are well known national or large regional firms with substantially greater financial and
personnel resources. We also compete with a number of smaller regional brokerage firms in Texas and the
southwestern United States.

In many instances APS Financial Corporation (�APS Financial�), our broker-dealer subsidiary, competes directly with
these organizations. In addition, there is competition for investment funds from the real estate, insurance, banking and
thrift industries. APS Financial competes for brokerage transactions principally on the basis of our research, our
reputation in particular markets, and the strength of our client relationships. In our investment banking activities, we
compete with large, well-known investment banks as well as regional service providers who offer placement and
advisory services to small-and middle market companies. We compete for these investment banking assignments on
the basis of our relationships with the issuers, potential investors, industry experience and transactional fees.

There is also significant competition in the financial services industry for qualified employees. We compete with other
securities firms for investment bankers, sales representatives, securities traders, analysts and other professionals. Our
ability to compete effectively depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified employees.

Our financial services businesses are subject to market forces beyond our control, which could affect us more severely
than our competitors.

Our financial services businesses, like other securities firms, are directly affected by economic and political
conditions, broad trends in business and finance and changes in volume and price levels of securities transactions. In
recent years, the U.S. securities markets have experienced significant volatility. If our trading volume decreases, our
revenues decline. Also, when trading volume is low, our profitability is adversely affected because our overhead
remains relatively fixed, despite lower compensation costs associated with commission revenues. Severe market
fluctuations in the future could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results. Certain of our competitors with more diverse product and service offerings might withstand such a downturn
in the securities industry better than we would.
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Our financial services segment is dependent on a limited number of customers and the loss of one or more of these
customers could adversely affect our profitability.

We receive a substantial portion of our financial services revenues from a limited number of customers. During the
first six months of 2007, one customer and its related entities comprised approximately 59% of our total financial
services revenues. The loss of this customer could significantly negatively affect the operating results of our financial
services segment.

Market conditions could cause reinsurance to be more costly or unavailable for our insurance services business.

As part of our overall risk management strategy, we currently purchase reinsurance for amounts of risk from $250,000
up to $1,000,000. If we are unable to maintain our current reinsurance coverage or to obtain other reinsurance
coverage in adequate amounts and at favorable rates, or if we are unable to renew our expiring reinsurance coverage,
we may be adversely affected by losses or have to reduce the amount of risk we underwrite.

We bear credit risk with respect to our reinsurers, and if any reinsurer fails to pay us, or fails to pay us on a timely
basis, we could experience a shortage of liquidity or unexpected losses.

We transfer some of our risks to reinsurance companies in exchange for part of the premium we receive in connection
with the risk. Although reinsurance makes the reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred, it does not
relieve us of our liability to our policyholders. If reinsurers fail to pay us or fail to pay on a timely basis, our financial
results will be adversely affected. At June 30, 2007, API had reinsurance recoverables on paid and unpaid losses and
loss adjustment expenses of approximately $25,854,000.

Until we acquired API, it operated as a reciprocal insurance exchange that provided insurance to its subscribers, and
therefore its historical financial and business results may not be representative of future results.

Prior to April 1, 2007, API was a reciprocal insurance exchange, with a business goal to provide a stable source of
medical professional liability insurance in Texas. Our business goal is to maximize API�s long-term profitability. This
change in business goals may not be successful, which could result in our income being significantly reduced. In
addition, we are subject to risks associated with negative customer perception of a for-profit corporation, as compared
to a reciprocal insurance exchange, which may cause significant customer defections and a loss in market share.

If we are unable to obtain and maintain a favorable financial strength rating, it may be more difficult for our
insurance services business to write new business or renew its existing business.

Third party rating agencies assess and rate the claims-paying ability of insurers based upon criteria established by the
agencies. The financial strength ratings assigned by rating agencies to insurance companies represent independent
opinions of financial strength and ability to meet policyholder obligations and are not directed toward the protection of
investors. These ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any security.

Financial strength ratings are used by agents and clients as an important means of assessing the financial strength and
quality of insurers. API has no financial strength rating. The inability of API to obtain a favorable rating within a
reasonable period of time could adversely affect its ability to sell insurance policies and inhibit API from competing
effectively. If market conditions for API�s insurance become more competitive, competitors with higher financial
strength ratings might have a competitive advantage. These results could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations and financial condition.
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Our insurance services business is subject to extensive government regulation.

Insurance businesses are subject to extensive regulation by state insurance authorities in each state in which they
operate. Regulation is intended for the benefit of policyholders rather than shareholders. In addition to control over the
amount of dividends and other payments that can be made by API, these regulatory authorities have broad
administrative and supervisory power relating to licensing requirements, trade practices, capital and surplus
requirements, investment practices and rates charged to insurance customers.

These regulations may impede or impose burdensome conditions on rate increases or other actions that we may want
to take to enhance our operating results. In addition, we incur significant costs in the course of complying with
regulatory requirements. Also, our ability to grow API through premiums and additional capacity could be limited due
to surplus and risk-based capital requirements under the financial regulatory guidelines of the Texas Department of
Insurance.

Most states also regulate insurance holding companies like us in a variety of matters, such as restrictions on
acquisitions, changes of control and the terms of affiliated transactions.

Currently, pursuant to an order of the Texas Department of Insurance, we must redeem at least $1,000,000 of our
Series A redeemable preferred stock each calendar year beginning in 2007, until December 31, 2016, at which time all
of the Series A redeemable preferred stock must have been redeemed. We also must pay a cumulative dividend equal
to holders of our Series A redeemable preferred stock equal to 3% of the outstanding redemption value per year. In
addition, the Texas Department of Insurance has required us to place $2,500,000 million into an escrow account with
a bank, to remain in escrow until the aggregate remaining redemption and dividend obligation with respect to our
Series A redeemable preferred stock is less than the amount of such escrow balance. We have agreed that no
withdrawals will be made from this escrow account without prior approval from the Texas Department of Insurance.

Further, the NAIC and certain state insurance regulators are re-examining current laws and regulations, specifically
focusing on issues relating to the solvency of insurance companies, interpretations of existing laws and the
development of new laws. Although the federal government does not directly regulate the business of insurance,
federal initiatives often affect the insurance industry in a variety of ways. The effects of any future legislative or
regulatory changes may have a material adverse effect on our Insurance Services business.

Our financial services business is subject to extensive government regulation.

The securities industry is subject to extensive governmental supervision, regulation and control by the SEC, state
securities commissions and self-regulatory organizations, which may conduct administrative proceedings that can
result in censure, fine, suspension or expulsion of APS Financial or any of its officers or employees. The NASD
regulates our Financial Services business� marketing activities. The NASD can impose certain penalties for violations
of its advertising regulations, including censures or fines, suspension of all advertising, the issuance of
cease-and-desist orders or the suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer or any of its officers or employees.

Our ability to comply with all applicable laws and rules is largely dependent on our establishment and maintenance of
a system to ensure compliance with these laws and rules, as well as our ability to attract and retain qualified
compliance personnel. We could be subject to disciplinary or other actions due to claimed noncompliance in the
future, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

The federal or state governments or self-regulatory organizations having jurisdiction over our insurance and securities
businesses could adopt regulations or take other actions, such as the failure to renew or the revocation of required
licenses and certifications that would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
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operations. In addition, our operations and profitability may be affected by additional legislation, changes in rules
promulgated by the SEC, NASD, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the various stock exchanges
and other self-regulatory organizations and state securities commissions or changes in the interpretation or
enforcement of existing laws or rules.
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The fact that we write only a single line of insurance may leave us at a competitive disadvantage and subjects our
financial condition and results of operations to the cyclical nature of the medical professional liability insurance
market.

We face a competitive disadvantage because we only offer a single line of insurance. Some of our competitors have
additional competitive leverage because of the wide array of insurance products that they offer. For example, a
business may find it more efficient or less expensive to purchase multiple lines of insurance coverage from a single
carrier. Because we do not offer a range of insurance products and sell only medical professional liability insurance,
we may lose potential customers to larger competitors who do offer a selection of insurance products.

Growth in premiums written in the medical professional liability insurance industry have fluctuated significantly as a
result of, among other factors, changing premium rates. The cyclical pattern of such fluctuation has been generally
consistent with similar patterns for the broader property and casualty insurance industry, due in part to the
participation in the medical professional liability insurance industry of insurers and reinsurers that also participate in
many other lines of property and casualty insurance and reinsurance. Historically, the financial performance of the
property and casualty insurance industry has tended to fluctuate in cyclical patterns characterized by periods of greater
competition in pricing and underwriting terms and conditions, otherwise referred to as a soft insurance market,
followed by periods of capital shortage, lesser competition and increasing premium rates, otherwise referred to as a
hard insurance market.

For the past two years, the Texas medical professional liability insurance industry has faced a soft insurance market
that has generally resulted in lower premium rates. During this two-year period, our rates have decreased by
approximately 13% per year on average. We cannot predict whether, or the extent to which, the recent decreases in
premium rates will continue.

Changes in the healthcare industry could have a material impact on the results of operations of our Insurance
Services business.

Our insurance services business derives substantially all of its medical professional liability insurance premiums from
physicians and other individual healthcare providers, physician groups and smaller healthcare facilities. Significant
attention has recently been focused on reforming the healthcare industry at both the federal and state levels. In recent
years, a number of factors related to the emergence of managed care have negatively affected or threatened to affect
the practice of medicine and economic independence of medical professionals. Medical professionals have found it
more difficult to conduct a traditional fee-for-service practice and many have been driven to join or contractually
affiliate with provider-supported organizations. Such change and consolidation may result in the elimination of, or a
significant decrease in, the role of the physician in the medical professional liability insurance purchasing decision and
could reduce our medical professional liability insurance premiums, as groups of insurance purchasers may be able to
retain more risk.

If we are unable to successfully write policies in new states, we may not be able to grow and our financial condition
and results of operations could be adversely affected.

One of our strategies is to write medical professional liability insurance in new states, either through internal growth
initiatives or selective acquisitions. However, our lack of experience in these new states means that this strategy is
subject to various risks, including risks associated with our ability to:

o

Comply with applicable laws and regulations in those new states;

o
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Obtain accurate data relating to the medical professional liability industry and competitive environment in those new
states;

o

Attract and retain qualified personnel for expanded operations;

o

Identify and attract acquisition targets;
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o

Identify, recruit and integrate new independent agents;

o

Augment our internal monitoring and control systems as we expand our business; and

o

Integrate an acquired business into our operations.

Any of these risks, as well as risks that are currently unknown to us or adverse developments in the regulatory or
market conditions in any of the new states that we enter, could cause us to fail to grow and could adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations.

The unpredictability of court decisions could have a material impact on our results of operations.

Our results of operations may be adversely affected by court decisions that expand the liability on the insurance
policies API issues after they have been issued and priced. Additionally, a significant jury award, or series of awards,
against one or more of API�s insureds could require API to pay large sums of money in excess of its reserved amounts.
API�s policy to aggressively litigate claims against its insureds that it considers unwarranted or claims where
settlement resolution cannot be achieved may increase the risk that API may be required to make such payments.

API could become subject to claims for extra-contractual obligations or losses in excess of policy limits in connection
with its policyholders� insurance claims. These claims are sometimes referred to as �bad faith� actions as it is alleged that
the insurance company failed to negotiate a settlement of a claim in good faith within the insured�s policy limit. API
currently maintains insurance in the form of a component of its ceded reinsurance for such occurrences, which serves
to mitigate exposure to such claims. However, the assertion of multiple claims for extra-contractual obligations in a
single year or one or more large claims in a single year could result in potential exposure materially in excess of
insurance coverage or in increased costs of such insurance coverage. Such occurrences could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

We are exposed to litigation in our Financial Services business.

From time to time, we are subject to lawsuits and other claims arising out of our financial services business. The
outcome of these actions cannot be predicted, and such litigation or actions could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition. We cannot predict the effect of any current or future litigation, regulatory
activity or investigations on our business. Given the current regulatory environment it is possible that we will become
subject to further governmental inquiries and subpoenas and have lawsuits filed against us. Our involvement in any
investigations and lawsuits would cause us to incur additional legal and other costs and, if we were found to have
violated any laws, rules or regulations, we could be required to pay fines, damages and other costs, perhaps in material
amounts. We could also be materially adversely affected by the negative publicity related to these proceedings, and by
any new industry-wide regulations or practices that may result from these proceedings.

APS Capital Corp., one of our financial services subsidiaries, trades bank debt and trade claims which subjects us to
potential losses and litigation risk.

APS Capital Corp. (�APS Capital�), a subsidiary of APS Investment Services in the financial services portion of our
business, trades bank debt and trade claims. In that capacity, APS Capital potentially is liable for losses related to the
impairment of the traded claims and for disputes that may arise during the trading process from either the holders of,
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or investors in, bank debt or trade claims.
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For losses due to impairment, APS Capital may be liable for the portion of its potential profit on a trade claim trade
that is proportional to any part of a traded claim that is subsequently impaired, offset, disallowed, subordinated, or
subject to disgorgement impairment�). Trade claims are private debt instruments representing claims by creditors
against a debtor in bankruptcy. On rare occasions, when a trade claim has been allowed by a final, non-appealable
court order, APS Capital may provide impairment protection for the full amount of a traded claim. In this case, it is
possible that (1) a claim is impaired and (2) APS Capital may be unable to recover the impairment from any prior
assignor of the claim. In the process of trading bank debt and trade claims, APS Capital is also subject to general
litigation risk, which may result from disputes that arise during its trading process or from particular potential or
executed trades.

Our compliance and risk management methods might not be effective, which could increase the possibility of
regulatory action or litigation or that our business is otherwise negatively impacted.

Our ability to comply with applicable laws and rules is largely dependent on our establishment and maintenance of
compliance, audit and reporting systems, as well as our ability to attract and retain qualified compliance and other risk
management personnel. Our policies and procedures to identify, monitor and manage our risks may not always
succeed. Some methods of risk management are based on the use of observed historical market behavior. As a result,
these methods may not accurately predict future risk exposures, which could be significantly greater than the historical
measures indicate. Other risk management methods depend on evaluation of information regarding markets, clients or
other matters that are publicly available or otherwise accessible by us. This information may not be accurate,
complete, current or properly evaluated. Management of operational, market, credit, legal and regulatory risk requires,
among other things, policies and procedures to record properly and verify a large number of transactions and events.
Our policies and procedures may not always be effective and we may not always be successful in monitoring or
evaluating the risks to which we are or may be exposed. The failure to assess and mitigate the risks to which we are
exposed could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operation.

ITEM 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Items 2(a) through (d) are inapplicable.

(e)  Stock Repurchases

Period

(a) Total
Number

of shares

Purchased (1)

(b) Average

Price Paid

Per Share

(c)   Total
Number  of
Shares
Purchased as
Part of
Publicly
Announced
Plans or
Programs

(d)   Maximum
Dollar Value of
Shares that May yet
be Purchased under
the Plans or
Programs

Apr 1, 2007 � Apr 30, 2007 14,700 $ 17.03 14,700 $ 1,342,000 
May 1, 2007 � May 31, 2007 16,871 $ 17.16 16,871 $ 1,053,000 
Jun 1, 2007 � Jun 30, 2007 -0- $ -0- -0- $ 1,053,000 
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(1)

All of the total shares purchased were purchased in open market transactions. Our original share repurchase program
was announced August 17, 2004 and was increased in $2,000,000 increments on December 12, 2005 and on June 30,
2006.

ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable
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ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

On June 6, 2007 the annual meeting of American Physicians Service Group, Inc. was held in Austin, Texas.
Shareholders voted and approved the following motions:

Election of Directors

The names of the directors elected at the meeting along with numbers of votes for and withheld are as follows:

Name For Withheld

Norris C. Knight, Jr., M.D. 2,696,071 6,894
Timothy L. LaFrey 2,693,240 9,724
Lew N. Little, Jr. 2,693,595 9,369
Jackie Majors 2,687,870 15,094
William J. Peche, M. D. 2,694,264 8,700
William A. Searles 2,687,672 15,292
Kenneth S. Shifrin 2,605,278 97,686
Cheryl Williams 2,687,323 15,641

All Directors were re-elected.

ITEM 5. Other Information

Not Applicable

ITEM 6. Exhibits

1.1

Underwriting Agreement to sell 2.3 million shares of the Company�s common stock. (2)

10.1

Managing General Agency Agreement dated April 1, 2007 between American Physicians Service Group, Inc. and
American Physicians Insurance Agency. (1)

10.2

Advisory Services Agreement dated April 1, 2007 between API Advisory, LLC and American Physicians Service
Group, Inc. (1)

10.3
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Order by Texas Department of Insurance dated January 26, 2007 approving the conversion from a reciprocal exchange
to a stock insurance company and merger agreement. (1)

10.4

Order by Texas Department of Insurance dated April 2, 2007 approving the Articles of Incorporation of American
Physicians Insurance Company. (1)

10.5

Excess of Loss Reinsurance contract effective January 1, 2007 between American Physicians Insurance Exchange and
the Reinsurers. (2)

10.6

Revolving Promissory Note dated April 15, 2007 between American Physicians Service Group, Inc. and PlainsCapital
Bank. (3)

31.1

Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2

Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1

Section 906 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

32.2

Section 906 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

________________

(1)

Filed as an Exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-143241, of the Company, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(2)

Filed as an Exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, Registration No. 333-143241, of the Company, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(3)

Filed herewith
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Signature

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Physicians Service Group, Inc.

Date:  August 17, 2007 /s/ William H. Hayes
William H. Hayes, Chief Financial Officer
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